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Financial and Operational Highlights BB ¥ K=

(Amounts expressed in HK$' million,

unless specified)

(ABEEETREN  REBZEHAMN

Turnover

Profit for the year
attributable to ordinary
equity holders of
the Company

Total equity
Total assets

Total liabilities to

total equity ratio

Total interest-bearing debts

to total equity ratio
Current ratio

Trade and bills receivables
(excluded bills
receivable — intra-group

trade) to turnover (days)

Inventory to turnover
(days)

Net assets per share
(HK cents)

Return on total assets (%)
Return on turnover (%)

Interest cover

(times)

EBITDA

EBITDA on turnover (%)

Basic earnings per share
(HK cents)

EES

AABEBEDS
B EREMN
7 F B i A

R
HEE

BemEn
MEREE

BH B A
MERE=E

MEEE R

R Ui BR R B
EWRERE
(B RER
RE—&E
RNEBESH)
L& (H)

FEILEERE
(H)

BREEFHE
CEBAL)

REERRE(%)
&R IR R (%)

FERE LR
(15 2)
BB ER
55 7 F B
BB ER
55 7 F B
bb & 28 (%)
EXZRER
CERAL)

Notes 2012 2008
Wi —B-—% =L LYV
13,766 11,862 10,538 9,998 9,669

930 1,133 1,007 860 926

5,869 5,513 4,793 4,275 3,916

13,436 12,260 8,255 6,792 6,890

1.3 1.2 0.7 0.6 0.8

0.6 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.3

1.5 1.6 1.9 2.0 1.9

29 29 35 34 39

72 91 75 60 60

431 405 359 322 295

6.9 9.2 12.2 12.7 13.4

6.8 9.6 9.6 8.6 9.6

1 31 58 118 26 29
2 1,511 1,803 1,549 1,389 1,578
11.0 15.2 14.7 13.9 16.3

3 68.3 84.3 75.8 64.8 69.8




Financial and Operational Highlights B i ¥ K HE

(Amounts expressed in HK$' million,

unless specified) Notes 2012 2008
(ABEEETREN  RISBIZHMN i —B—=fF ZT— = = —EENF
Dividends per share FRRE
(HK cents) B #A) 50 53 48 40 43
Dividend yield (%) IR 55 3R 2 (%) 4 5.3 6.4 5.6 10.0 7.7
Number of issued shares BRTRHOEAE
(million) (%) 1,361 1,361 1,335 1,327 1,327
Number of employees: EBEAE:
Hong Kong and Macau BENEPM 805 785 728 704 716
Taiwan =¥ 737 700 696 741 860
Mainland China AR K BE 22,950 22,770 22,620 22,254 23,372
Singapore 37 hn 3K — — — 197 369
Malaysia BRAD — — — 160 185
Total mgy 24,492 24,255 24,044 24,056 25,502
Notes: KtaF :
1. Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and 1. FIEIRFE L R 2 5 E B FIER F S B2 % FIEd F 2
tax by the interest expenses. BHHE-

2. EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 2. EBITDABFEFIS - BiIE « IER #5557 o

expenses.

3 Number of shares was on weighted average basis. 3 R BE 1R E TR ENE -

4. Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the 4, REEIHEZFTERBERRELRIGEEREH R T
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting RIKTFTEZEE -
period.

5. The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for 5 L ER#ETIEREBRGEN B FERFEE mE
each financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the 21 F B 18 7N 55 B R A BE R 5 R AR 2 1805 °
Group as at the end of the respective reporting period.



Chairman’s Statement FfEREE

The Group achieved another record high revenue of HK$13,766
million in this fiscal year. However, net profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company decreased by 17.9% to HK$930 million. Please
refer to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section in this
report for more information regarding the Group’s operating
performance.

Cotton prices started to decline from mid 2011. By the end of the year,
its value evaporated by more than 40% from the peak point. In the
second half of this financial year, our customers requested for a higher
price discount on the orders in view of the difficult economic
environment. Since the Group’s cotton inventories were purchased
earlier at higher costs, the profit margin levels of the textile business
in the period were notably affected. By the end of March 2012, the

cotton inventories purchased at expensive prices had been mostly used

up.

The performance of the retail segment was also unsatisfactory in the
year. Domestic demand slowed down in mainland China mainly caused
by the government policies to cool down the housing market and the
drop in exports. High cotton raw material prices had increased the
cost of sales. Also, the weather conditions were exceptionally
unfavourable for our retail operation in the year. Moreover, profit
margins were impacted by heavy price discounting of some
competitors.

Europe is in financial trouble and the global economic conditions are
still sluggish. The operating environment will remain challenging in
the year ahead. On the other hand, the Group has been gaining larger
market share as a result of the consolidation of the textile industry.
Moreover, cotton prices have stabilized since the beginning of 2012.
The Management believes the business environment could gradually
improve in the new fiscal year. With solid financial status, the Group is

still confident to achieve progressive results in the coming year.

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my genuine gratitude
to our colleagues for their dedication and hard work especially during
challenging time last year. | would also like to convey my sincere
thanks to all our business partners and shareholders for their continual

support and confidence in the Group.

Poon Bun Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2012

REBEBRARAYBFEWABRIHSEBY 13,766
BB AWM BEMEEREERNT K17.9%
EBWBEBL -FLHAFREEE 2R
EoMi—RERAKREESZ cRERREN -

WREEBBH0NFEPRETH® ZFE HEE
CHIBEZZZTHIBA% EAMHRFEZTF¥
FRAKERGRSE BEMEREITELAERX
ZERFR - HRAEEZREFEBRENR
B HRER CERKTEEZEZNE-
F0N2F3AK EEZRIEFEC KB MIEE -

ZEXBEAFIRBSTEE - ZRBF LA
BHTBRREATESE  AEAFHRE B
BERSETENTHERR FRAEAEETEX
BTBIABERF 2 RRAR Bt - BFIZRIT
ZMOBFHFREREERIFTOHAZE -

BUMERB R - MEREEAMRRT R - REL
ERENANRBEMT -Z—FH HBITEZER
TAREBRBEBATSLEER - HR RBIEERK
H20R2FNEEBRE EEBREENMEF
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis BEE 2wl & 27

BUSINESS REVIEW

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s total turnover
increased by 16.1% to HK$13,766 million (2011: HK$11,862 million).
Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$930 million (2011: HK$1,133 million), a decrease of
17.9%. The Group's gross profit margin was 29.6% (2011: 33.7%), a
decrease of 4.1% from last year. The Board has recommended a final
dividend of HK24.0 cents (2011: HK30.0 cents) per ordinary share.
Including interim dividend, total dividend per ordinary share would be
HK50.0 cents, a decrease of 5.7% from last year's HK53.0 cents.

Textile business

Revenue of this business amounted to HK$6,976 million (2011:
HK$5,971 million), an increase of 16.8%. The amount represented
50.7% (2011: 50.3%) of the Group's total revenue. Cotton prices
started to fall from mid 2011 and lost its value by over 40% from the
peak point by the end of the year. During the above mentioned
period, the Group had to grant higher price discount to the customers
in view of the difficult market situation. Since the Group’s cotton
inventories were acquired earlier at more expensive costs, the gross
profit was adversely affected. By the end of March 2012, the higher
prices inventories had been mostly depleted. Gross profit margin in
the year dropped to 14.8% from last year's 20.4%. Average selling
price was up by 7.9% and sales volume increased by 8.4%. In the
period, the performance and the key financial ratios of the business

were as below:

XKEE
BE_Z-——_F=ZA=+t—HLEZXGHEE"
AEBZBRAEING1%EHEE13,766 & T
(ZE——F BB 1182EET) AATAEH
FEEREAFE N ABHEBIEERL (=
——F  B¥11338E8 ) 0 THK17.9% - FX&E
ZERNEEH2.6% (ZF——F :33.7%) BEF
THAN% EESSERRLARAPRESZER
B8040 (=2 — —F : BHE30.01L) c EEH
HRE STERRKRELELSBNES.0M - BE
F 2B 53,040 T B5.7% °

BEBERWANBBE6II6EET (ZE——5F:
BEESI/MEET) ER168% - kHEBABAEAE
B&WAZ250.7%(=F ——F :503%) ° 1 1E
BB —FFHEATE® AFREEEH
SIEXTHBIBA0% o £ HI R B R RN
rEEOERRUEESZERTN BAREAEE
ZREEFERBRSHAZES  EMNEMZ
EEFW AN -_FT-——F=ZAK ABHZEE
EFCHERB-AFENEREF2204% THRE
148% ° FHEBLAH7.9% > MEE EF784% -
HALER - RERFTEMHLRBINT :

(HK$’ million)

(B BEET)

Net sales HEFR 6,976
Gross profit margin (%) EFNE(%) 14.8
Operating profit (note) EERE (M) 692
EBITDA BB ER

(note) 1 85 A1 R (B EE) 916
Return on total assets (%) BEEREE(%)

(note) (KtaE) 6.4
Return on sales (%) (note) SHEWE (%) (ML) 10.7
Return on equity (%) (note)  #3k W & 2= (%) (KfaF) 13.4
Capital expenditure BARMR W 57

5,971 5,540 5,058 5,386
20.4 21.6 21.2 21.3
908 853 776 910

1,137 1,074 992 1,108

8.3 12.6 13.7 14.8
14.6 14.9 15.1 15.4
17.4 18.8 18.9 22.5

80 121 104 216

Note: Exclude interest income and rental income.

Kist : TEEFBRARBEEZNRA -



Management’s Discussion and Analysis BEE 2wl & 27

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business

Sales of this business increased by 15.5% to HK$6,766 million (2011:
HK$5,857 million). The amount was 49.2% (2011: 49.4%) of the
Group’s total turnover. Domestic demand in mainland China slowed
down in the period. Meanwhile, profit margins were impacted by
heavy price discounting of some competitors. Gross profit margin
decreased to 44.8% (2011: 47.1%). In the period, the Group added 177
new stores mainly in mainland China. At the year end:

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as

follows:

K EEE)

TERDHEY
EEEEHE I MN15.5%E B 67668 B T
(ZZE——F . BH¥587THET) LBAKRER
CHEEREC492% (ZF——F 1 49.4%) c FE
NERBARE B BAXRIBHHRIER
MARBERTMAEE c ERETKREL44.8% (=
E——F471%) B AEBEEEHEFEHE
MT177REHFHIE - RAFR :

(@) EBRERFTEZFHLRBVINT :

(HK$’ million) 2012 2011 2008
(B¥EET) —E-ZF ZE2——F = —EEN\EFE
Net sales SHEFH 6,766 5,857 4,960 4,900 4,239
Gross profit margin (%) EFR=E(%) 44.8 47.1 46.4 453 49.1
Sales growth of comparable ALt E4H SN ER R

shops (%) (note 1) bt = (%) (BfaE1) 2.9 13.8 3.7 6.5 21.4
Operating profit (note 2) & 2% R58 (#f:F2) 157 407 253 160 242
EBITDA E B HER

(note 2) 1 85 30 7 H

(Krat2) 276 495 351 279 364

Return on total assets (%) #& & W % 22 (%)

(note 2) (BtaE2) 3.2 12.5 9.7 5.5 2.1
Return on sales (%) SHE W= E (%)

(note 2) (Krat2) 1.3 5.0 3.7 1.3 0.8
Return on equity (%) REm U= = (%)

(note 2) (K1zF2) 9.0 38.6 40.0 23.5 26.2
Capital expenditure ERMELRH 192 109 53 107 76

Notes: Kiat :
(1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation during ) T E ISR ZER BT — F1)E R E&E
the year and the preceding year. BYJER o

) Exclude interest income and rental income.

@ TEEFERAREZUA -



Management’s Discussion and Analysis BEE 2wl & 27

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Retail and distribution business (continued)
(b) the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows:

¥ EFEE)
BERSHER(E
(b) BREBRBHEEINOT:

(HK$’ million) 2009 2008
(BHEET) —EBhE —BBNF
Baleno I fE B% 3,653 3,089 2,463 2,311 1,589
S&K S&K 940 846 757 809 826
I.P. Zone I.P.Zone 699 643 601 639 528
ebase ebase 465 399 326 383 462
Others Hth 1,009 880 813 758 834
Total a5t 6,766 5,857 4,960 4,900 4,239

(c) the development in different markets was as follows:

Mainland China

“E-—F ZT——F

2012

(0 BHETSBBRBERWOT:

B K R

2011 2009 2008

“BTRE —BENF

Net sales HEFE

(HK$’ million) (B HET) 5,811 4,987 4,097 3,834 3,124
Increase in net sales (%) HEFEIE 2B MN(%) 17 22 7 23 29
Retail floor area ZERAEE

(sq.ft.)** (FFFHR) ** 2,368,260 2,162,123 1,748,531 1,866,008 1,692,967
Number of sales associates** &8 & H ** 11,492 11,348 9,957 10,701 10,442
Number of outlets** PAmeEE* 4,044 3,894 3,639 3,828 3,477

Hong Kong and Macau
EBRAM

Net sales HEFE
(HK$’ million) (B¥EET)
Increase/(decrease) SHEFE 2 ®EmMm
in net sales (%) Rl 2) (%)
Retail floor area TEEEEE
(sq.ft.)** (FHR) **

Number of sales associates ** & # 5 g g **

FITh 8B =

Number of outlets *#

1

61,722
493
70

2009 2008

STTAE SBENE

465 416 402 404
12 3 Q)] (15)
54,960 52,555 56,131 63,957
482 422 398 396
63 62 65 70




Management’s Discussion and Analysis BEE 2wl &

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

() the development in different markets was as follows:

()

¥ EFEE)
BERSHER(E
BHTIEBRERMT | (&)

vkl

(continued)
Taiwan o
2011 2010 2009 2008
—E——F ZE-ZTF ZZZAEFE ZZEENE
Net sales HEFHE
(HK$’ million) (B¥BHETT) 495 405 375 426 397
Increase/(decrease) SHEFEZ2E M
in net sales (%) (B 2) (%) 22 8 (12) 7 (7)
Retail floor area ZEEEERE
(sq.ft.)** (FEF IR ) *# 151,218 135,734 125,497 187,230 199,443
Number of sales associates** & EEH *# 638 608 602 641 747
Number of outlets *2 FAmEE* 181 161 154 194 217
Singapore N3
2011 2010 2009 2008
—E2-—F ZE-FF ZEZNEFE ZEBENE
Net sales HEFH
(HK$’ million) (B EHET) — — 48 166 233
Increase/(decrease) HEFE2E M
in net sales (%) CRL2) (%) — (100) (71) (29) 5
Retail floor area TEEEmE
(sq.ft.)** (FFFHR) ** — — — 24,877 43,149
Number of sales associates** # % S &g ** — — — 157 318
Number of outlets** I g g * — — — 23 a4
Malaysia BRAE
2011 2010 2009
—E——F ZE-ZTF ZEZTNE
Net sales HEFHE
(HK$’ million) (B HET) — — 24 72 81
Increase/(decrease) EEFmEoEM
in net sales (%) CRL2) (%) — (100) (67) (11) 16
Retail floor area ZEEEERE
(sq.ft.)** (FE5R) *# — — — 33,185 44,630
Number of sales associates** & ¥ S8 B ** — — — 134 149
Number of outlets** Fem g B * — — — 16 20
* As at the end of the reporting period * RIREHAK
# For self-managed stores # HE &

A Including self-managed and franchise stores

A BEEBERETEEE



Management’s Discussion and Analysis BEE 2wl & 27

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Garment manufacturing business

Revenue of this associate increased 12.7 % to HK$1,369 million (2011 :
HK$1,215 million). Net profit contribution to the Group amounted to
HK$64 million, (2011 : HK$56 million), an increase of 14.3%. In the
year, 68.9% (2011 : 66.7%) of the fabric consumed was supplied by the
Group'’s textile division and sales to the retail segment accounted for
31.7% (2011 : 29.6%) of its revenue. Due to high cotton raw material
costs, the operating environment was uneasy in the period. The
Management has continued to exercise strict cost control to maintain
stable profit margins. Gross profit margin was 15.2%, same as last
year's 15.2%.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank debts and the gearing ratio as at the year
end were 1.5, HK$3,606 million and -0.2 (2011: 1.6, HK$3,588 million
and -0.1) respectively. The gearing ratio refers to the ratio of the total
interest-bearing debts, net of cash and cash equivalents, to the total
equity. The net cash inflow from operating activities for the year was
HK$948 million (2011: HK$1,256 million).

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables
(excluding bills receivable for intra-group trade) to turnover and the
inventory to turnover were 31 times, 29 days and 72 days (2011: 58
times, 29 days and 91 days) respectively. The Group mainly satisfied its
funding requirements with cash inflow from its operating activities
and bank borrowings. At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents,
the equity attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company and
the unutilized banking facilities were HK$4,500 million, HK$5,546
million and HK$4,064 million (2011: HK$4,233 million, HK$5,233
million and HK$4,735 million) respectively.

Capital expenditure

During the year, the Group continued to expand cautiously. The
capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was HK$249
million (2011: HK$189 million). HK$57 million (2011: HK$80 million)
was incurred by the textile business for the expansion of its
manufacturing plant and the addition of machinery. And HK$192
million (2011: HK$109 million) was incurred by the retail and
distribution business for the expansion and renovation of its retail
outlets.

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2012 and 31 March
2011.

K EEE)

WEE NRWRAEMNI2.7%EEE1,3698E T
(ZE2E——F  BBI121588 %) WAEEFE
FEMABEMEET(ZT——F: B%¥56H
BL) BMN143% - FR689% (ZF——F:
66.7%) R MHBHAEEHENBEE MEE
FAEBESEERAEERAEN TR (=T —
—F:296%) c HRMBRIAARLR BHRKLER
BUETRS BEEBTEHRERNURBEER
Mo EREE15.2% » EBEF Z215.2%4E °

B iR R

RBESRMKEER
AEBRHBEZTRSINTBERR REFER R
B E RITERLEREFAEBBRES A
1.5 B¥3606BBTR-02(ZE——F 16"
B3 588HB L K-0.1) c EAREEBLEIIEN
RESRRESEEYNEMEERRUEESR -
AELREFMENBEBESRANTELBEUMEET
(ZE——F  B¥1,25688 ) °

RAE FERELR BEREAREKRERE
(FEEEERNESZERRE) BEXEAEX
URGFEHEXEBEAE R A A311E 29K
RDR2R(ZE——F 15812 29K KITK) e KE
EFXrEULLEHMERSRARRBITERREHE
BESHER -RAFER BeRBESEEY -
ARAAEERENMEERLEER RS HRTE
BEED R ABEAS0EE T BHES5S46HE T
RBEALGAEET(ZZ——F [ B¥423388
T BMS233EB R EBEAI-EER) ©

EARMZH

REAE AEFHRESEHER XEREEE
AMEXHABYE29BER(ZE——F: B
189BER) HPHBXB I HABESTEET
(ZZ——F BH¥80EER) TEANEER
ERIEMERRE TERSHEK I HABY
1NEER(ZZE——F : B¥I109BBT)  £E
ARERSERERTEMTMHNER-

BEEER
RZE-——F=F=+—-HAR=ZZE——F=A=
+—B TESEAREECHEA -



Management’s Discussion and Analysis BEE 2wl & 27

FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2012 and 31 March
2011 have been set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HKD floating rate
borrowings with maturity due within three years. As the global
economic recovery remains sluggish during the year, the interest rate
is expected to stay at a low level for a prolonged period. The Group
will continue to monitor the interest rate movement and arrange
financial instruments to reduce its interest rate risk whenever
appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD,
Renminbi, YEN and NTD and the Group had arranged foreign
exchange forward contracts to reduce its currency exchange risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had about 24,500 (2011: 24,300)
employees in the Greater China. The remuneration of the employees
was largely based on industry practice and the performance of
individual employee.

B 7 AR R (4#)

REEE
RZE-——F=A=+—-HRZE-——%=ZR=
+-—BHNREEEHAC AT BRRM T34
|9c_|o

B 5 & AR AR
FEEBESBRRBERKRERARNRERER
B AEBETEMERITERRFIENELE
FoUR=ZFREH ARBERREERFANER
e AHANZRERFRNERKFER-RE[ X
SESEEEEANEZNEY TR EERKRR
HEm T A LURERI RE R -

RAEFR AEEBXTEEE-BEF WA - XH
KERBEABL ZX AR -BRKHAE
B AEBECRHERIESHURBEEERRE

ag o
N

ANER

R-ZE-—-ZF=ZA=Z+—-H £KKEEYVEEE
24500 A (ZZE——F 124300 AN) R R E- 2
IHFMeBEETZEAERNTEZRERAREI/MAZ
ES



Management’s Discussion and Analysis BEE 2wl & 27

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, the Group also encourages its employees,
customers and business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities
with a view to developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated to were:

(1) World Wide Fund for Nature (Hong Kong);
(2)  Orbis “World Sight Day 2011";
(3) Hong Kong Red Cross “Red Décor Day 2011";
(4)  HSBC Pok Oi Cycle for Millions ;
(5)  The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Dress Casual Day”;
(6)  Agency for Volunteer Service “Walk for Volunteering”;
(7)  The Community Chest “Love Teeth Day”;
(8) The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
“Caring Company Scheme 2011/12";
(9) 2012 ICBC (Asia) Charity Golf Day;
(10) 2012 HSBC Share-to-Care Volunteer Campaign; and
(11)  World Cancer Research Fund (Hong Kong).

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporates and the
government. Therefore, the Group will continue to invest resources in
all major social, educational and environmental protection activities to

strive for a better future for our community.

OUTLOOK

The global economic conditions are still unfavourable. The
Management believes the operating environment will remain
challenging in the coming year. The Group will continue its moderate
expansion in both the textile and retail divisions. At the same time,
the Management will monitor closely the market conditions to avoid
making mistakes.

Stringent cost control to resist inflation pressure has been an
important exercise for the Group. The Group will continue to maintain
a healthy financial position and more focus will be placed on the cash

flow and inventory levels.

Cotton prices have been stabilized since early 2012. The United States,
the Group’s major market, has shown some signs of improvement in
consumer confidence. The Management believes the operating
environment could gradually improve in the coming months and is

confident to achieve progressive results in the year ahead.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn; the retailing
and distribution of casual apparel and accessory; the provision of
franchise service and the provision of repair and maintenance services
for motor vehicles. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 42 to 136.

An interim dividend of HK26.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 10
January 2012. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK24.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year, to
shareholders on the Register of Members of the Company on 24
August 2012. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the

equity section of the statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary

does not form part of the audited financial statements.

EEEMAEREHE-_TE——F=ZA=+—HL
FEZRERBAEERERLAT(AA2T))HE
EWMBLAR(ERBIAEE]) 2 EEXRTIEHRE -

E-3 83

REEFAEH TEXRORHATRBEYOZE
HRER BREGHN2ZERDH  REUHEHF
HEMBRRERTELEBCIRERE -A5EH 2
IRXEBMEEFFELREAEE -

RABZEEXZBLAREER -

XEHEEER
AEEBREBEZ-ZE——_F=A=+t—HLFEZ
BARADNDEAEERZZAH 2 EHMR R
HNPISRREIE136HE °

THRESREBRBE260ER-F—ZF
—ATHRE BESSLEBRBELAFERAR
EEREBRABB 20T -—=-FNA=T
BEIARARREMZBRER  BREZERE
SHAFRBBHRER TORYBFEMRRRAER D
HRERFEL -

MBERME
TRAXEERBERBANRFEZXRERE
E-EEEFEREZCHE DEEELMZ
BRECHBRRRRFEEHET D5 1Al
B FEREELMBHRER 2D -



Report of the Directors EEE &

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

Results

REVENUE A

PROFIT BEFORE TAX % A v Al

Income tax expense BB

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 78 & [ & Fl

Attributable to: BE
Ordinary equity KAREBE
holders of the EREE
Company
Non-controlling FERER
interests

Assets, Liabilities and Non-Controlling Interests

TOTAL ASSETS HEE

TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE

NON-CONTROLLING  FEiZpR#EZS
INTERESTS

2012

—E—_—F
HK$000
B FT

B EERBE @)
EY |

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—-HLEE
2011 2010 2009
—3——% =-T-FF —TThEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B FT BT BT

2008
—EENF
HK$000
BT T

13,765,827 11,861,780 10,537,966 9,997,737 9,669,206
1,128,219 1,459,584 1,217,351 1,012,572 1,213,975
(169,406) (202,030) (116,607) (121,448) (254,843)
958,813 1,257,554 1,100,744 891,124 959,132
930,340 1,133,241 1,007,213 860,357 926,351
28,473 124,313 93,531 30,767 32,781
958,813 1,257,554 1,100,744 891,124 959,132

2012

— T
HK$°000
BT T

13,436,323
(7,567,238)

(322,628)

EE -AESEFERES

As at 31 March
=B=+-—8

2011 2010 2009
—2-——% -Z-%F -ZINF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T BT
12,260,041 8,255,487 6,791,954
(6,747,354) (3,462,791) (2,517,166)

(280,037) (219,840) (136,825)

2008
—EENF
HK$000
BT T
6,890,097
(2,973,812)

(96,933)

5,546,457

5,232,650 4,572,856 4,137,963

3,819,352
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and construction in progress of the Group
during the year are set out in notes 13, 14 and 16 to the financial
statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set
out in notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2012, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$677,966,000,
of which HK$326,725,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for
the year. In addition, the Company’s share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve, in the aggregate amount of
HK$591,361,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$599,000 (2011: HK$446,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Kei Chak

Poon Kai Chak

Ting Kit Chung

Poon Ho Wa (appointed on 1 April 2011)

Independent non-executive directors:

Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin (appointed on 1 April 2011)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing directors
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, and still considers them to be independent as at the date of this
report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each of
the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or

compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 64, is the chairman and chief executive
officer overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He
founded the Group in 1975 and has more than 37 years’ experience in
the textile field.

Mr. Poon Kei Chak, aged 60, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group on its establishment in 1975 and has more
than 37 years’ experience in the field. He is responsible for the
purchases, sales and the overall management of the Group.

Mr. Poon Kai Chak, aged 62, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group in 1980 and has more than 32 years’
experience in the industry. He is responsible for the management of
the manufacturing operations of the Group.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 56, is responsible for the general
administration and financial management of the Group. He joined the
Group in 1991 and has more than 10 years’ banking experience. He
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Ho Wa, aged 35, is a son of Mr. Poon Kai Chak, an executive
director of the Company and a nephew of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and Mr.
Poon Kei Chak, both of whom are executive directors of the Company.
He is responsible for helping the management of the textile business
and production development. He joined the Group in 2002 and has
extensive experience in the investment banking industry. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in management from The London School
of Economics and Political Science. He was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 1 April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 67, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), a consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008)
and a member of the Election Committee for the financial services
subsector election for the 1998 Legislative Council. He is also an
independent non-executive director for several public companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he is a former deputy chairman of
The Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994) and
a former council member of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 62, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 54, has been the General Manager
(Hong Kong and Investor Relations) of Samling Global Limited since
2009. He has worked for several major international accounting and
financial institutions. Besides, he possesses extensive experience in
auditing, corporate finance and private equity. Mr. Law graduated
from University of Toronto in 1980 with a degree in Bachelor of
Commerce. He has been a member of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants since 1983. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1 April 2011.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Min, Samuel, aged 57, is a director of the Group's retail
operations. He holds a Master's degree in business administration
from the Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is a member of the British Computer
Society. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Chan had over 15
years’ experience in retail operations and MIS management.

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 50, joined the Group in 1997 and is the
Group’s financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan holds a
Master's degree in commerce from The University of New South
Wales, Australia, and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a certified practising accountant
of the CPA Australia. He has more than 25 years’ experience in
auditing and accounting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management (continued)

Mr. Fung Wai Lun, Daniel, aged 55, is a director of the Group’s retail
operations. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Fung had more than
20 years' experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Wong Tung Yiu, aged 57, is the director and general manager of
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a subsidiary of the Group engaged in the
sale of finished knitted fabric and dyed yarn. He joined the Group in
1994 and has more than 38 years’ experience in the textile industry.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EENEREEBAEBE®)

BREEANE (E)

HEMEE ATER AEEZEXEBES-
R—AAREMALAEB A HELECSEESE
THEZEXEER-

IRBEE Ettm FAEERSHEBETRE
WHEEZHWBRARKERBERQIRNESRARL
BoWR-—NWANEMARER  BEA=TN
FHBEER-

EERROREEROZEER KR

RZB-ZF=ZA=+—-0 A28 REES
KEEM®RM)EN2GMEFNELTH  HRE
(LT RRAEZETESXZNEETFAD(HE
FANDBALARAREIF FSESEAQXAR
HgBZB(EER(BEZRBEMHEM) EXVE)
WROREERO 2EESRXBNT

Number of shares held and capacity

FREERSH

Directly or
beneficially

Name of director owned

HEXR
ESER

Through
discretionary

2GR

Percentage of
Through the Company’s
controlled issued share

trust corporations capital
EAE QT
B2 B®ITRA

RO

HEX

ZH QD F

Executive directors: HITES :
Poon Bun Chak BWIE 32,888,000 168,800,104 456,450,000 658,138,104 483
Poon Kei Chak BHOE 22,977,200 — 41,922,0009 64,899,200 48
Poon Kai Chak BIEE 10,702,800 — — 10,702,800 0.8
Ting Kit Chung THAR 4,100,000 — — 4,100,000 0.3
Independent non- BIEHTES
executive directors:
Au Son Yiu B 100,000 — — 100,000 0.0
70,768,000 168,800,104 498,372,000 737,940,104 54.2
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(1) The 168,800,104 shares are owned by Farrow Star Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Perfection (PTC) Inc as a trustee for The Evergreen
Trust, a discretionary trust which was found by Mr. Poon Bun Chak. Mr.
Poon Bun Chak is deemed to be interested in these shares in accordance
with the SFO.

) The 456,450,000 shares are owned by Giant Wizard Corporation in which
Farrow Star Limited has a 97.15% equity interest. A 2.85% interest in
Giant Wizard Corporation is owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

3) The 41,922,000 shares are held by Treasure Link International Holdings
Limited, in which Mr. Poon Kei Chak and his spouse each owned 50% of

equity interests.

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Name of director

Esgs

Executive directors: HTES:
Poon Kei Chak EHOE
Poon Kai Chak EEE
Ting Kit Chung TEER

Poon Ho Wa (appointed on 1 April 2011)

Independent non-executive directors: BIYFHTES:
Au Son Yiu ERRE
Cheng Shu Wing B 131 58

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section “Share
option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Further
details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options outstanding during the year:

BRESE
RABTEMN—EBRESE(TZFTE)  £E8
MEONEERREHASEFHERNSEE
RERERBM - AT ENF BRI BRRKN
FE30FIKRE o

TEREERFARARRTEZERENES

Number of share options

Exercise price

Name or category of Date of grant of of share At 1 April

participant share options* options** 2011
BRE R=-F——F
SRELABIER BRERRBEH TREERK** mA—H
HKS per share
ERER T

BREHE
Exercised
during At 31 March Exercise period of
the year 2012 share options
FA
BT BRETEAR

Executive directors

— 5,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
—EEF
hBE+—RZE
—E-—F

hB+H

— 3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EEnE
=ZA=tRXABE
—E-mF
=Z=BA=+EHH

— 8,000,000

— 4,000,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
—EEC-F
hB+—HZE
—E--F

hB+H

— 3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EENF

HITES
Poon Kei Chak 11 September 2002 497 5,000,000
BRI —23=F
hWA+—8
26 March 2004 5.60 3,000,000
—TEnE
ZA=+5xH
8,000,000
Poon Kai Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 4,000,000
BEEE —
hA+—8
26 March 2004 5.60 3,000,000
—ZTEWEF
ZA=+RXH
7,000,000

— 7,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BIRESTE @)

Number of share options

Name or category of

participant

SRELZBAER

Executive directors

Exercise price

Date of grant of of share
share options* options**
i A% 58
TREER*>
HKS per share

ZREET

BRERRHE

At 1 April
2011
R=-Z——%
MA—H

BREHE
Exercised

during

the year
FA
[EEFg:d

At 31 March
2012
R-2—Z-F
=HA=+-—H

Exercise period of

share options

B8 R A AT 2 A PR

(continued)
BITES(H)
Ting Kit Chung 11 September 2002 4.97 1,500,000 — 1,500,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
THER —EEC-F —Ez—&
hB+-A hB+-BE
—E-—F
hB+H
26 March 2004 5.60 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EEMEF —EENME
=ZA=+7H ZAZt+RHE
—E-MF
=Z=A=+EHH
7,500,000 — 7,500,000

Poon Ho Wa 26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — 200,000 1 April 2006 to
(appointed on 1 April 25 March 2014
2011)

BEEE —EEWEF —EERE
(R=FB——%F =ZB=+xH mA—HZE
A — HEZAF) —Z=—mE

=A=+EH
22,700,000 — 22,700,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Name or category of

participant

SRELZBAER

Exercise price

Date of grant of of share
share options* options**
i AR 58

BRERRE TEEME

HKS per share
SFREH T

Independent non-executive directors

BAIEBITES
Au Son Yiu

[Roys

Cheng Shu Wing

A 5

11 September 2002 4.97

26 March 2004 5.60

11 September 2002 4.97

26 March 2004 5.60

ZTUE
B=+7x8

[ A

BRESE E

&)

Number of share options
BREHE
Exercised

At 1 April during

2011

R=ZT——F

A—H

the year
FA
[EEGg:d

200,000 —

200,000 —

At 31 March

2012

R-2—-F
=A=+-—H

200,000

200,000

Exercise period of

share options

B8 R A AT 2 A PR

11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012

—EECE
hWA+—BZE
—E-—F

AAtTHE

26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014

—EENME
ZAZt+tRHE
—E-MF
=ZA=+EHH

400,000 —

400,000

200,000 —

200,000 —

200,000

200,000

11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012

—EE-HF
hBE+—RZE
—E-=F
hABE+H

26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014

—EEME
ZA=t+tXRHE
—E-MF
=B=+EH

400,000 —

400,000

800,000 -

800,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BIRESTE @)

Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise price Exercised

Name or category of Date of grant of of share At 1 April during At 31 March Exercise period of

participant share options* options** 2011  the year 2012 share options
BRE R-T——F FRA R=-T-—=F
SREEZBYER BRERRBE S TREER*> mA—H Bffff ZA=+—H BRETEHR
HKS per share
FREE T

Other employees

Higg
In aggregate 11 September 2002 497 100,000  (100,000) — 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
At =15 —zs=%
hB+-8 hB+-BE
—E-—F
hB+H
26 March 2004 5.60 1,790,000  (410,000) 1,380,000 1 April 2006 to
25 March 2014
—EEMEF ZEERE
ZA=+RXH R—H=Z
—E-MF
=Z=A=+EHH
1,890,000  (510,000) 1,380,000
Other eligible
participants
Hit 8 &%
28mE
In aggregate 26 March 2004 5.60 4,700,000 — 4,700,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
&5t —EENE —EETNE
=ZHA=+XH ZHA=tRXBE
e
=A=+EH
30,090,000 (510,000) 29,580,000
Notes: M -

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the =~ * IR AR E R TS 78 1R A AL 21T (E BRI LE »

commencement of the exercise period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case ~ **  FERENITERBSRE R AERERFEALREEH
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share BRAHE R MIE N EE ] T o
capital.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’'s shares REEBRETEAHIRIARGNMETS
immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was WHEREREE42T -
HK$9.42 per share.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'’S FERRREMALTIAROGREBER
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES RS

At 31 March 2012, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued RZ-ZZBE——£=A=+—H UTHEEAXAFD
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests ~ B¥{TRAS% R E 2 CREB(ESRBE
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the {&fI)SE336KR EXLH N AR A BRENESR

SFO: i
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARBREBRZHR

Number of  Percentage of the

ordinary Company'’s issued

Capacity shares held share capital

B A F]

BRTRA

BREEXERHE BH=

Perfection (PTC) Inc Trustee 2,3 625,250,104 45.9
ZEA

Farrow Star Limited Through controlled corporation 1 456,450,000 33.5

HERHAR

Directly owned 168,800,104 12.4
HEER

3 625,250,104 459

Grant Wizard Corporation Directly owned 1,2 456,450,000 33.5
HEER

FMR LLC Through controlled corporation 79,930,001 5.9

BIEAQR

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc  Through controlled corporation 69,578,000 5.1
and its Associates

F R N

al

Heung Mi Kuen Miraner Through spouse 4 22,977,200 1.7
e ElB
Through controlled corporation 4 41,922,000 3.1

EIEAQR

64,899,200 4.8
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S FERREREMBMATITRBROREBR

INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES R E
(continued)
Long positions in share options of the Company: RARTEREZTFA

Percentage of the

Number of share Company'’s issued

Capacity options held share capital

HARRAF

ERITRA

B &t HEBERE"RR B E

Heung Mi Kuen Miraner Through spouse 4 8,000,000 0.6
BXEB ERE

Notes: BfEE -

1. The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were 1. Giant Wizard Corporation#s 5 7Kk 23 &] 2 #& 23 B2Farrow
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Farrow Star Star Limited Bl B AL\ Bl 2 #m GIHES ©
Limited.

2. The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were 2 Giant Wizard Corporationis & 2 22 &] 2 ## # £
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection Perfection (PTQ) Incfi 15 B A N Al 2w GHEE ©
(PTQ) Inc.

3 The interests of Farrow Star Limited in the Company were duplicated by 3. Farrow Star Limited 575 7k 23 8] 2 #& 2 £ Perfection (PTQ)
the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection (PTC) Inc. InciEFBEANAZEm DHES ©

4. The interests of Ms. Heung Mi Kuen Miraner in the Company were 4 BEBLLTIHELRNAZEm EERELEIFER

duplicated by the interests in the Company held by Mr. Poon Kei Chak, NAZEROHES FHELERBEARARGZE
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests and short wmEFMRUEZ[EBRREREER G ZEHR
positions in shares and underlying shares” above. KE e

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, no person, other than FBREXFEEEN R-ZE-—-F=A=+—
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the B ' HMEAT(BRAARNESHERDHFLNINE
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and ZRBOREEROZERZRARIINREAAF
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest and short MM HHEERMGF EEEER(EFRALEMHK
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was  fI)28336fk F U E 2R R KA °

required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below,
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed below by the Group in accordance
with relevant clauses of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

FEREXS
RABRZBYFRTESCR(BEBHAREM
BRABDFFLEHRATETHRAD E14AF
REZEREAFNTEANSERERS  AHRRA
REBEBREXSRUTET:

() BAEEWAEEXY

(i) EB-BREBEHERK
T RER S WIRK

AT RYAKEM
= T
BYE=FWHERNR R

NERETHEER

X

(i) REXZRRBEEABRSNHERRE
F XBBRRAFAE  LABAKAT
FESET IR

FRRAZBIREMLZ KETHEB MR ER
RAEEZREREXZREATESHAAS
M2 BB E & B B 530005 #4814 41 K
BEHETERRFH LI NEEZE IR S RE
RIESIE 740 RIEZEE LT RAZHFERER
BZEHMAMTMEHRE - ZKEFHHEHHM
A K ERE TR RE 14A 38R B IR
UTHEBEXZRER 2HE BREBERSE
AERAREREREBS RN -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rules 14A.35 and 14A.45 of the Listing Rules, the
Group is required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt
continuing connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.45.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person:
On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled and
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu, Bin
Jiang Road 282-286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet
for the retail and distribution business of the Group for a term
of three years commencing from 1 April 2009 at the monthly
rent of RMB748,000, RMB785,000 and RMB824,000 for the first
year, the second year and the third year, respectively. On 26
March 2012, the Group renewed the lease agreement with MRL
for a term of two years commencing from 1 April 2012 at the
monthly rents of RMB948,000 and RMB995,000 for the first year
and the second year, respectively.

(2) Lease of a property as a director’s quarters from a connected
person:
On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins
Road, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s
quarters of the Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2009 at the monthly rent of HK$360,000 per month.
On 26 March 2012, the Group renewed the lease agreement
with Latex for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2012 at the monthly rent of HK$360,000.

(3) Lease of a property as a training center from a connected
person:
On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room 42078,
42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower I, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL as a training
center of the Group for a term of three years commencing from
1 April 2009 at the monthly rent of HK$38,000 per month. On 26
March 2012, the Group renewed the lease agreement with WLEL
for a term of two years commencing from 1 April 2012 at the
monthly rent of HK$42,000.

BEBEXS @)
TERENSEBERSFHE

BREWRAIE MA%&MA%MEE $%IM
BEBUALKEETERENSERERSY
B0 AR ED o

(1) F—BEALRE-YEELEZEFT:
RZEZAF=A=-+HA AEEHL
EEBRERATATLUED (BRI ANHT
EEREERRBWELLEZEER) B
HEXN BUEARBMRPEXERMF
BB T 82825528655 M R B I RET A
E EATEBEZSERSHEBNTEM
mym—iﬁﬂiﬂﬁ—ﬁi%%=$'

—F - E-_FERE=ZFVNAEIBNBA
E%Mmmn'AEMRmmn&AE
824,000t R =ZZFE—ZF=ZHA =+~
E’$%Eﬁm§%%’m—ﬁ—:¢@
F—RRAHME F-—ERE-FNE
A&7 R A ARYMM000T R AR
995,000 T °

(2) B—BEALRBE-YFEREFES:

—EER ¢ B=Z+EHB AE@EEY
ERABDTYIEN(HAQAAHTES
ﬁ%ﬁié%é%i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%?*
B EYBAEEBEE LA ERFE28
EAAEE-—EEFEE2A-BA=FTTN
FNA-BRAN=F SAHESAEBEY
360,000t R=ZE—Z—F=A=+x8 "
AEBRYBEN BT ——FMA—
HEERHEME  §AHEAHE 360000
o

R
=

(3) E—BEALAB-YEEREZINDL -

$§ﬂ$=ﬂ—+£5v$%aﬁﬂ

¥ERAATKkERD(HAQT
ﬁﬁ%%&@%hi%%%%iéﬁ%
B)EEH BXKEEAAEEHNREE
BERIFHMBEESE BN+ &
4207BZE - EAAEBNEIFL-BHZE
EZNFEFMNA-—ARE AH=F S/#H:
ABH3IB00T - A-_E——_F=A=+
ABOAEEEXEFEHEEN AT —=
FUA-—BR AYWME SHHASAEB
#£42,000 7T ©

mir 3
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2012

RUZARERE
BRENABBZAMANRESEZEE  RAE
BER AROCHEFDATIREHERITR
AR 225% °
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ZRGHASHMERSEE  ERDTHRDE
BOZRAAFAG FRSERZLBE 2RE
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AREBEW
E
B IR
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been adopted to shape our
corporate governance structure. This report describes how the
principles of the Code have been applied during the year ended 31
March 2012 under different aspects.

BOARD STRUCTURE

Board of directors

The Board comprises of eight members. The five executive directors
include Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon Kei Chak, Mr. Poon Kai Chak,
Mr. Ting Kit Chung and Mr. Poon Ho Wa (appointed on 1 April 2011).
The three independent non-executive directors (“INEDs") include Mr.
Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin
(appointed on 1 April 2011). Mr. Poon Bun Chak is the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon Kei Chak and Mr. Poon Kai Chak are
brothers. Mr. Poon Ho Wa is a son of Mr. Poon Kai Chak and a nephew
of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and Mr. Poon Kei Chak.

All the existing non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
Clause 86(1) of the bye-laws of the Company.

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and
the day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the
executive management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1) to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment; and

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the

Group's strategic objectives.

EERERBWE

FEEEBRERSBEENCEEARRALKE
EMBEM - AAARMALENRBMEF14FE 2
(EERFADTFADZERAUSEH D
ERRB A REHAAQNTEE-ZE-—ZF=
A=t -BLEFERANAESETEHEERST
BIPr 8 & IR A

E=ERE

Exg
EZTEEEN\EHE AT ESEREENE
FECBHELEE BEEEE THIELEER
BEERE(R-Z-——SNA-BEZEMF) -=
BN TESBEERRLBRLE BHRLE
REMFEEE(R=-Z-——FNA-BEZEME -
BWEEERARAIERESRALE -

BWELLE BREREREEELERRE -
BEEAERBEREEECRFREBENELEEN
BREREZER -

RABBEHDTESAUFERERE
=REA DTz A M RE86(1)IRE
RAZBRREFRELBEREEF-

EAEH
ERRA

EESRETEERBNER BEITHNER

BAEREEERARXEB LNER

ESENTEREE:

(1) BEAEBEER X HEREBTI

Q EESELEEIENRE IR

() BRAEBERKMEEHNTABHRENES
BEK -
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BOARD STRUCTURE (continued)

Board process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to
discuss in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings
are prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and
are open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are
allowed to seek external professional advice if needed. All directors
are kept informed of the latest update of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements.

Induction and development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business of
the Company and the obligation and responsibility of being a director.

Every board member receives terms of reference upon joining the
Board, which lay down the guidelines on conduct and other key
governance issues. The terms of reference are updated regularly and
the latest version is available on the Company’s website.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, directors
received regular updates and presentations on changes and
developments to the Group’s business and to the legislative and
regulatory environments in which the Group operates. All directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expense. All directors are required to provide the Company
with his or her training record on an annual basis.

EEgxEm

EZeeRRF
ARNAREBEWNESCSERF SEERE
EEEETONIK - BREERASRRETR
% SRESEENTONAEBELEEfEE
ERRHERBIEREZIEN -ESHFTERR
SRR ENEAMFEHANSEE - ALQT
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INDEPENDENCE AND QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of its
Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INED, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS, BOARD MEETINGS AND
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Attendance of annual general meetings, board meetings and
committee meetings during the year ended 31 March 2012:

BYFHITESNBEIMRERE

AATFMFAE ETHRAEII0MNKERII0AKHE
R HEEEEA=-RBUFYTES HES
EREABZR=ZAZ— FEBILFHITES
EEEEANERRIEER - Hh — (U B3k
BITESENFLEREEESTHER IRE
BALTRAEIQRQENER - RBEEZ=Z—
“HE=ZA=+-BLEE FEBYUKHTES
CRETRAEIBEERELBE LM -

BREFAE EEZ22ZIRZETEY
23
HE_Z-——_F=ZA=+-HEFERZHRR
BEAE EESLENRZTEESINH:

Number of meetings attended/held during the year

FERHE BTEBERE

Exe ENZEES

Annual

General

Directors Meeting

= BRRAFAE
Executive directors HTES
Poon Bun Chak BEWE

(Chairman and (EFEHFEZFE

Chief Executive A4 TE)

Officer) 0/1
Poon Kei Chak EHOR 171
Poon Kai Chak EEE 0/1
Ting Kit Chung THAR 11
Poon Ho Wa BIEE

(appointed on (R=F——4F

1 April 2011) MA—HEZEE) 17

Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Au Son Yiu B4 11
Cheng Shu Wing EEEES 7
Law Brian Chung Nin FE A F
(appointed on (R=F——4F
1 April 2011) A — B EEE) 0/1

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee

¥FMEEE REZESE

Board Committee

4/4  N/ATEA N/ATEA NATEA
4/4  N/ATEA N/ATER NATEA
44  N/ATEA NATER NATEA
4/4  N/ATER 4/4 0/0
4/4  N/ATEA NATEA  NATEA
4/4 4/4 4/4 0/0
4/4 4/4 4/4 0/0
4/4 4/4 4/4 0/0
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established several board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
members of the Audit Committee comprise the three INEDs, namely
Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, Mr. Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a
qualified accounting professional.

At the time of establishment, the terms of reference and duties have
been laid down as a guideline for the Audit Committee. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee include:

(@) Monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b)  Monitoring and assessing the internal controls system of the
Group;

()  Monitoring the performance of the Group’s internal audit team;

(d) Considering the appointment and removal of the external
auditors, the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e) Reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of
the Group.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
March 2012 to review the followings:

(@) The internal controls and risk management of the Group; and

(b)  The financial reporting process and the financial statements of
the Group.

EEZEE
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs
and one executive director, namely Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu
Wing, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu. At the
time of establishment, terms of reference and duties have been laid
down as a guideline for the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all the
remuneration of directors and other senior management, and
reviewing and approving compensations payable to directors. The
remuneration of the directors and other senior management is
determined with reference to the performance of each individual and
the Company, the market conditions and the industry practice.
Besides, the Remuneration Committee will ensure that no director or
any of his/her associate may be involved in the determination of his/
her own remuneration. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the
Remuneration Committee held four meetings to review and approve
the remuneration adjustment and performance bonus of executive

directors and other senior management.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director,
namely Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee
is chaired by Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. At the time of establishment, terms
of reference and duties have been laid down as a guideline for the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
the recommendation of candidates with appropriate experience and
qualification to become members of the Board. During the year ended
31 March 2012, the Nomination Committee reviewed the policy for
the nomination of directors and assessed the independence of the
INEDs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The terms
of reference of the corporate governance function have been
approved by the Board for adoption and those terms of reference are
available on the Company’s website.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules as the

Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company

by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors,

they have all complied with the required standard set out in the

Model Code throughout the financial year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN
THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with the code

provisions of the Code throughout the financial year, except for the

following deviations:

(1

o))

3)

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and be subject to re-

election.

All the existing non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with Clause 86(1) of the bye-laws of the Company.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have a policy of separating the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer of the Board. The Board
considers the current arrangement can help maintaining a
strong management position and at the same time improving
the communication efficiency. The Board may consider the
separation of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
upon the then circumstances.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending
the annual general meeting to an executive director of the
Company. The chairman considers the executive director a
suitable person for taking up such duty as the executive director
has been serving for similar duties for many years and he has
good understanding of each operating segment of the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for
facilitating the board process, as well as communications among board
members, with shareholders and management. The Company
Secretary’s biography has been set out in the “Biographical details of
Directors and Senior Management” section of the “Report of the
Directors”. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company
Secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional training to upgrade
his skills and knowledge.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2012, fees paid for audit and non-
audit services by the Company were as follows:

Services

AR %

SR A E R

Audit services rendered

Non-audit services rendered

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent

Auditors’ Report on page 40 to 41.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

The system of internal controls is defined as the internal control
procedures with which the Company uses to ensure the accuracy of its
accounting records, safeguard the assets of the Company and ensure
the compliance with the relevant rules and regulations. The Board is
responsible for maintaining efficient and effective internal controls of
the Company. During the year, the internal audit team, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee, has reviewed the internal controls of
each major operating segment of the Company and has reported its
findings to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is satisfied
with the effective internal controls of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as our
many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst ensuring
that relevant information is equally and simultaneously provided and
accessible to all interested parties. The Company has adopted the
following communication channels:

(1) Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings (“AGM") to
explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the
Company; and

(4)  Publishing the background, the latest development and the
results of the Group on the Company’s website.

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.

Shareholders’ rights

According to clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details
of each proposed resolution and other relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises
his power under the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed
resolution to the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting
a poll are explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.
Voting results are posted on the Company’s website on the day of the
AGM.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Changes to constitutional documents

During the year ended 31 March 2012, there was no significant change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these documents are
published on the Company’s website and on the Stock Exchange’s
website.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions to the Board or the Company are welcome to contact
the Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited
Address: 16/F Metroplaza Tower I
223 Hing Fong Road
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel.: (852) 2610 7116/(852) 2610 7257
Fax: (852) 2233 1116/(852) 2233 1257
Email: IR@texwinca.com
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 42 to 136, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower,

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

25 June 2012
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REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses, net
Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate,

net of tax

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY (HK cents)

Basic

Diluted

Details of the dividends for the year are disclosed in note 11 to the

financial statements.
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2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——fF
HK$000 HK$000
EBETT BT
5 13,765,827 11,861,780
(9.691,759) (7,866,089)
4,074,068 3,995,691
5 342,636 187,213
(2,570,200) (2,025,218)
(729,996) (725,572)
(14,594) (2,357)
8 (37.651) (25,817)
63,956 55,644
6 1,128,219 1,459,584
9 (169,406) (202,030)
958,813 1,257,554
10 930,340 1,133,241
28,473 124,313
958,813 1,257,554
12
68.3 84.3
67.7 83.5

FEEREFRRENMBBRRMENR -
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2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR N F R A 958,813 1,257,554
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H fth 2 R B
Exchange differences on translation REGINSEEBEEZ
of foreign operations EXEH 153,136 132,984
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEZHEABAR
FOR THE YEAR 1,111,949 1,390,538
Attributable to: FE
Ordinary equity holders of the Company AR EBERERFIEE 10 1,069,358 1,270,224
Non-controlling interests FERER 42,591 120,314

1,111,949 1,390,538
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2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BENRSKE 13 2,144,549 2,160,778
Investment properties REYE 14 193,278 169,094
Prepaid land lease payments EMANLHEER 15 23,149 23,469
Construction in progress EEIRE 16 94,327 75,991
Trademarks BE 17 33,293 33,293
Investment in an associate REgE AT Z2RE 18 101,830 132,568
Long term rental deposits REEeRS 122,092 110,804
Total non-current assets HBERBEE 2,712,518 2,705,997
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories =78 21 2,712,541 2,960,378
Trade receivables FE R BR X 22 683,416 593,401
Bills receivable — external trade FEWEE —HLE S 403,450 348,060
Bills receivable — intra-group trade EREE —SEBRIPE S 1,707,485 734,580
Prepayments, deposits and BARE -FE2R
other receivables H b FE UL BR =X 680,550 667,784
Held-to-maturity investments SEIBMNKRE 20 23,384 —
Derivative financial assets TTESREE 23 12,661 17,006
Cash and cash equivalents HEPRESEEY 24 4,500,318 4,232,835
Total current assets BWRBEE 10,723,805 9,554,044
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Due to an associate FETBEE N T 19 9,715 45,707
Trade payables FEATERX 25 1,333,828 1,400,632
Bills payable — external trade BRNEE—NFES 93,469 89,438
Bills payable — intra-group trade EBAZEE —SBRTES 1,707,485 734,580
Other payables and accrued liabilities HtEMERERRETEE 26 436,288 487,575
Derivative financial liabilities fTEEmEns 23 4,492 8,026
Tax payable AR E 246,706 306,821
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITER 27 3,193,332 3,024,535
Total current liabilities WHREBEE 7,025,315 6,097,314
Net current assets REBEESE 3,698,490 3,456,730
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABER 6,411,008 6,162,727
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITER 27 412,567 563,724
Deferred tax liabilities ELERBBEE 28 129,356 86,316
Total non-current liabilities BWERBERB 541,923 650,040

Net assets EEFHE 5,869,085 5,512,687
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2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to ordinary AAREBRERFTEE
equity holders of the Company LR
Issued capital 28T R 29 68,068 68,042
Reserves HE 31(a) 5,151,664 4,756,324
Proposed final dividend BIRREBRE 11 326,725 408,284
5,546,457 5,232,650
Non-controlling interests IE IR = 322,628 280,037
Total equity 4 RE 3 5,869,085 5,512,687
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung EF EE

Director Director BEWIE THRE



EREEEER

N

+—ALFE

—FE=Z/=

—E-=

HE F——F ) L0V SHFYHCH T IR RSB HEHPHET  «

o (2£000¥ZE95LY

“uopsod [epuBULY JO JUDWSILIS PBIEPIOSUOD DY UI (000HZE ‘9SL VSNH

:11L0Z) 000°99°LSL'S$H 4O SaAIdsaI Pa1epI|osu0d Yl as1idWod sUN0Ide 9AI9sa.] 8sdYy [

G80'698's  829'7zE LSY'9¥S's  SeL'9ze LL6'20L'Y  6Y PYE'6C €85'12Y 986'¢ G69'L 0LE'C 999’685 89089 H-—4+=H=

FT-&°WU TL0Z YIen LEY

— — — SeL'9ze (SzL'9ze) — — - - - - - - (VL) & e 0 (11 330U) pUSPINP
H#F--g-/——-&= |euly pasodoud z102/1 10T

(rlo'vse)  — (rlo'vse)  — (wLo'vse)  — - — — - — - - (LLE ) & ¥ b (11 330U)
Hy-——-&-/——& PUSPIAIP WLIRIUI Z107/LL0Z
GS6'E — GS6'E — — — GS6'E — — - — - — (ELEW) EBFHE (€1 910U) 5)9s5e JO UoeN[EADY

T6L'T — T6L'T — - — — — — - (519) 18E'E 9 (62 ) (6 230U)
B A suondo aJeys Jo 3512493

(r8z'80y)  — (¥8z'80y)  (v8Z'80W)  — — — — — - - - - BEWHXIED paJepap
HE——&=-/&-&" puspIAIp [eul 110Z/010Z

6v6'LLL'L  16S'TY 85€'690'L  — 0vE'0€6 — — 810'6€L — — — — — HR g Jeak ayy 1oy dwodul
ByBTEHY anisuayd.dwiod [eoL
€18'856 €LY'8C 0vE'0€6 — 0vE'0€6 — — — - - - - - [F2:9=E-24 Jeak ayy 4oy 1401d
9€L'ESL 8LL'yl 8L0'6EL — — — — 8L0'6EL — — — — — EHRYH juawubi|eal abueydxy
[89'T1S'S  L£0'08C 0S9'2€7'S  ¥87'80Y 0LE'€S8's  6F 68€'sC 69528 986'€ G691 §86'C §82'985 7v0'89 H-Husz——&-WY 110z [udy | 1Y

((C)LEE )
((e)1€ ar0U)

((C)LEE )
((e) L€ d30U)

x*

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #

Year ended 31 March 2012 #Z

LAt &
000.$¥H
3 17

Lt H#&
000.$¥H
3
LECE 3

s)saIR)ul

LA &
000.$XH

UL G
000.$XH
'

B N M
pusp
[euly

LA
000.$XH
*HHBE

Lt m#
000.$¥H
+HHIH

YA w#&

000.$4H
.25

HEER

PEYNELY

Lt w#&

000.$¥H
+HEESR

EL

PEYVEITT

YL w&
000.$4H
«RERE

YL
000.$)¥H  000.5)H
2 257 -2

EEvH MW

PEYVELT PEYVEITY

YL YL
000.$)H
*HE X
b2

xjunone

LA H#
000.$)H
S

2 =
Aunba |eyded

|e3ol

|eyol «SHjoad PCINELST] xsnjdins

Buijjonuod

paueay  [eba uonenjeAds uonenpny  panguiuo) uondwapas uondo

Jassy aleys

S EEYBREREO Y
Auedwo) ayy jo siapjoy Ayinba Aseuipio 0} 9jqeinquRy

wnjwaid
aleys

panss|

-uoN pasodoid abueypx3 |euded




BER

T—HIEFE

ZEFE=ZH=

—E—=

Year ended 31 March 2012 #Z

[89'71S'S  L€0'08C 0S9'7€T's  ¥8Z'30Y 0LE'ES8'E 6V 68€'ST §95'282 986'¢ §69'L §86'C §82'985 70'89 H—4+=H=

F-—&-Y L10Z YueN LE IV

(¥¥6'09) (£15'99) (L2v'Y) - (Lz8'9wl)  — — - - — 009'L¥L 008 (62 1) (6 @10U) S¥s3IBIUI
TDYWFHFES  buljjonuod-uou jo uosinbdy

(009'€) (009°€) — — — — — - - - — — siapjoyaJeys
& X ¥ 3 X T 3 L W Buyjjoyuod-uou 03 pred puspialg

— — — v8z'80r  (v8T'80V) @ — - - - - - - (VLB ) & e 0 (L1 830U) puspiAlp
Hf-——-&-/&—&" |euly pasodoud | 102/0102

(szg'ole)  — (szg'ote)  — (szg'ote)  — - - - - - - (LLE ) & ¥ b (11 330U)
Hy——&-/&-&C PuspIAIP WLBUI 110Z/01L0Z
(zv2'L) — (zve'L) — (8) — — — 8 — (rez'L) (8) (62 M) Q¥ (6z 230U) SaueYS O dseydinday

90L'€S — 90L'€S — - — - — - (sz1'1) LLL'ES 0zs (6ZE ) (6 @30U)
ERE A suondo aJeys Jo as1249x3

(evo'Lve) — (ev0'Lve)  (zv0'Lve)  — — - - - — — - BEWHXIED paiepap
HEE—&=-/U&g&E= puapiAIp [euly 010Z/6002

8€G06€°L  YLEDTL vez'ore's — Iwwz'eel't  — €86'9€1 — — — — — W Jeak ayy 1oy
EyETEEZY |aWodU| dAIsusYaJdwod |ejo]
¥SS'LST'L ELETL Iwz'sel't — IWz'sel't — - — - — - — [F2:%5E24 Jeak ayy 4oy 1401d
¥86'C€1 (666'€) €86'9€1 — — — €86'9€1 — - — — - BEEYH Juawubijeas abueydx3
969'26L'7 078’6l 958'7/S'Y  THO'LYE €£0'985'c  6¥ 68€'SC 785'StL 986'¢ 189'L oLl 802'26€ 0€£'99 H-Huzs—&-W 0107 |udy | 17

((e)LEE L)
((e)L€ d30U)

((C)LEE )
((e) L€ a30U)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #R& %

LA &
000.$4H
3 47

Lt H#&
000.$4H
3
LECE 3

s)saIR)ul

LA &
000.$4H

Lt m#
000.$4H
k]

BN

LAt
000.$4H
KB Y

Lt wm#
000.$4H
+HHIH

LA w#&
000.$YH  000.$XH
.25 THEESR

HEEE HY

PEYNELSY PEYVELTT

Ligm¥ LLH¥
000.$4H

~HEHE

LA

000.$¥H  000.$XH
2 25 3 2]

EEvH W

PEYVELT PEYVEITY

YL & LLH¥
000.$4H

HE
¥ ¥

xjunone

LA H#
000.$XH
S

2 =
Aunba |eyded

|e3ol

|eyol «SHjoad PCINELST] xsnjdins

Buyjjonuod

paulelay _mmw._ uonenjeaal u

1assy

NHREEUBHERETY
Auedwo) ayy jo siapjoy Ayinba Aseuipio 0} 9jqeinquIy

enpnjy  painguiuo) uondwspal uondo wniwaad

aleys

panss|

pasodoid abueydxg |euded aleys




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR ERER

Year ended 31 March 2012 B2 =—ZE——F=F=+—HIFEZF

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profit of an associate,
net of tax
Interest income
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange
derivative financial instruments
Net fair value gains on investment
properties
Depreciation
Recognition of prepaid land lease
payments
Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Provision/(write-back of provision)
for slow-moving inventories
Impairment of trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in trade and bills receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in an amount due to
an associate

Increase in trade and bills payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accrued liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Profits taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of derivative
financial instruments

Dividends received from an associate

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Additions to construction in progress

Purchases of held-to-maturity investments

Redemption of held-to-maturity
investments

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Increase in long term rental deposits
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FE Wy BR TR A
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(0329
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HEMTEEMTAERA

SWEELRRE
BEYE BER
RBEE
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BEFEIHN
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HEME BER
REEE WA
REESREBM

13
16

2011
—E-—F —E2——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT B F T
1,128,219 1,459,584
37,651 25,817
(63,956) (55,644)
(181,254) (76,063)
(21,478) (24,357)
(43,412) (9,800)
344,605 317,291
588 584
(5,634) (1,737)
(38,660) 54,684
12,336 1
1,169,005 1,690,360
286,497 (851,275)
(1,130,646) (655,529)
(12,766) (129,683)
(35,992) 3,074
910,132 1,188,990
(51,287) 128,287
1,134,943 1,374,224
(186,481) (118,121)
948,462 1,256,103
181,254 76,063
22,289 29,914
100,000 50,000
(231,564) (171,572)
(17,640) (17,697)
(23,384) —
— 272,888
10,625 3,679
(11,288) (940)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR EREE

Year ended 31 March 2012 B2 —&E——F=F=1+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E——f —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$’000
B F T B F T
Increase in time deposits with original RETMZB=@AB UL
maturity over three months when Ef 2 EBFER
acquired 10 (439,854) (2,513,824)
Acquisition of an additional interest in BA-MBEARN
a subsidiary FEMER - (60,880)
Net cash flows used in investing activities RE&EZFHR SR L FEE (409,562) (2,332,369)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BtEZEHERE
Issue of new shares BITHR 29 2,792 53,106
Repurchase of shares 5 B8 B% 17 29 — (1,242)
New interest-bearing bank borrowings K ERITER 8,550,900 8,516,117
Repayment of interest-bearing bank BEM SRIT
borrowings BX (8.533,260) (6,640,646)
Interest paid SRR (37,651) (25,817)
Dividends paid ETRE (762,298) (657,867)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing BEEEE SR A
activities SR 348 (779,517) 1,243,651
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND B RBEEEEBYZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS i, GRd) B8 (240,617) 167,385
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FzHeRBREE
of year B 1,466,935 1,274,389
Foreign exchange adjustments INEFE 68,246 25,161
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RELZRAZ2EHER
END OF YEAR HEZEEY 1,294,564 1,466,935
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRRELEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERD T
Cash and bank balances ReRBTES 24 258,310 487,037
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ R B =18 8 &k 2 &
maturity within three months 2 IR R E BB
when acquired bEE 1Y 24 1,036,254 979,898
Non-pledged time deposits with RETZB=@A UL
original maturity over three months 2 HY = 3K 9 E 2R
when acquired bEE 1Y 24 3,205,754 2,765,900
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ReRBRLEEY
the consolidated statement of ME NG E B 55
financial position e 4,500,318 4,232,835
Less: Non-pledged time deposits WoRETZB=@AMU L
with original maturity over three E 8 2 AR 4R
months when acquired EHER (3,205,754) (2,765,900)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReRBELEEY
in the consolidated statement of MEFREEES

cash flows REBR 1,294,564 1,466,935




Company Statement of Financial Position 2 B B # AR &

31 March 2012 —E——_F=H=+—H

2012 2011
—g-=% —E-—%
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ATRZRE 32 389,811 822,414
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments AT RRIE 149 149
Dividends receivable FEU BT B 950,000 410,000
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEY 24 148 162
Total current assets BRBEE 950,297 410,311
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued liabilities EstaE 343 534
Interest-bearing bank borrowings i iR 1T & & 27 — 76,667
Total current liabilities BWREBEE 343 77,201
Net current assets MEEEFE 949,954 333,110
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABDEE 1,339,765 1,155,524
Net assets BEEFRE 1,339,765 1,155,524
EQUITY fEm
Issued capital 2RITRAR 29 68,068 68,042
Reserves H1& 37(b) 944,972 679,198
Proposed final dividend BORKR BB 77 326,725 408,284
Total equity B 1,339,765 1,155,524
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung -l -l

Director Director BEWIE THRE



2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#R R Mz

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower I, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

3 Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn;

o Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessory;

. Provision of franchise services; and

° Provision of repair and maintenance services for motor
vehicles.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
certain leasehold land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment, and derivative financial instruments, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

2.1

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to
the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

HK (IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments
Requirement
HK (IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in May 2010

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS 1 and
HKAS 27 included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the
adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.
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2.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#R R Mz

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

22 EBEEBECZE®E (@)

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)
The principal effects of adopting these HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

(b)

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions of
related parties. The new definitions emphasise a
symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarify
the circumstances in which persons and key management
personnel affect related party relationships of an entity.
The revised standard also introduces an exemption from
the general related party disclosure requirements for
transactions with a government and entities that are
controlled, jointly-controlled or significantly influenced by
the same government as the reporting entity. The
accounting policy for related parties has been revised to
reflect the changes in the definitions of related parties
under the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. Details of the related party
transactions, including the related comparative
information, are included in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the
adoption of some of the amendments may result in
changes in accounting policies, none of these amendments
has had a significant financial impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: The amendment
clarifies that the amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32
and HKAS 39 that eliminate the exemption for
contingent consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business combinations
whose acquisition dates precede the application of
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

(a)

(b)

RALEESHBREEN
T

2748 4

BV

ERETTERE24% (KB BHE
AT#HE

BB G ERISE245 (K1EFT) B
RECEEALTZER - HEZRRH
BEALTEGEEEME YEMBAAL
RETBREBAEHEERIHEA
TERZBER - RBTERTRE
HUERAAZHELREERD
B -BUFES - HEEZES EARE
ZEBNRZS SIATHZEEAL
HRERRRR AT AHEBEEAL
CEFTBELEBITE  RIREBTE
BINBEA T ZER - RNEERIE
B AEBPBERRREELEAE
A -BEALXRGZHE B
HELEREN  SRNGEEMBRRM
37

“E-ZFLRBEMGNEESHK
BEEH—F-FF2HERIZ
ERYBBELD 2B - FBEE

RZEET ARG TE ARNEB T BRR
FEEBHEAVUBEEZE -HEAR
AEBNETEBTHBOT

. EEMBRELENEIRES
BHEE - B ET M A& OB B IS R
SEAETSR - FRBSFTER
329 R BB IR ERISE395
ZEITHEHRERAREZH
% BZAERT AL T EBRK
AERBVBHMEEAFEIN (R
“ERENFELER) 2AET
EROBREE 2R RRE-



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#% 3R M=

31 March 2012 —E——_F=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 i BERIBEZEF (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)

In addition, the amendment limits the scope of
measurement choices for non-controlling interests.
Only the components of non-controlling interests
that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by another
HKFRS.

The amendment also added explicit guidance to
clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced
and voluntarily replaced share-based payment

awards.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The
amendment clarifies that an analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income can be
presented either in the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the financial statements.
The Group has elected to present the analysis of
each component of other comprehensive income in

the statement of changes in equity.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and
HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier
if HKAS 27 is applied earlier.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#R R Mz

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK (IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
Project

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe Hyper
inflation and Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters'

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans*

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets’

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements*

Joint Arrangements*®

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*

Fair Value Measurement*

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?

Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax:

Recovery of Underlying Assets?

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine*

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle*
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

Further information about those changes that are expected to
significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of a
comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets.
Instead of classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both the
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared
with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made to
the measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO"). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a
liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI"”). The
remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of
the liability’s credit risk in OCl would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have

been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#R R Mz

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets continues
to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2015.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities including special purpose entities or structured entities.
It includes a new definition of control which is used to
determine which entities are consolidated. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to
exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS
10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues
raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint
arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two forms of
joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint ventures, and
removes the option to account for joint ventures using
proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities that are
previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number
of new disclosure requirements for these entities.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS
28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12,
HKAS 27 (2011) and HKAS 28 (2011) from 1 April 2013.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required to use fair value,
but provides guidance on how fair value should be applied
where its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively
from 1 April 2013.

Amendments to HKAS 1 change the grouping of items presented
in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or
loss at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition
or settlement) would be presented separately from items which
will never be reclassified. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2013.

HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of deferred tax
for investment property measured at fair value. The
amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred
tax on investment property measured at fair value should be
determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be
recovered through sale. Furthermore, the amendments
incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income
Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using the
revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be measured on a
sale basis. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 12 Amendments
from 1 April 2012.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-
wording. The revised standard introduces significant changes in
the accounting for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains
and losses. Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification of short-
term employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit
pension plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from
1 April 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#R R Mz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the
Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to

exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of an associate
is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associate
is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition
costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESHBRENEE (&)
(continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued) EBEHREE(E)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition
date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which
is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured. Subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances where
the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of
HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#R R Mz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties) the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBENEBE @)

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset and certain
financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related parties (continued)
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and construction in progress, are
stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is realised and transferred
directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the
corresponding asset is used by the Group. The amount realised
is the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover an impairment loss, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer
from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to

retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEES:HFENME (%)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
leasehold land and buildings revaluation reserve and remains
there until the subsequent disposal or retirement of the
property, when it is transferred from the revaluation surplus to
retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and 25 years or over the remaining lease

buildings terms, whichever is shorter
Leasehold Over the remaining lease terms
improvements

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

office equipment
Motor vehicles and 5 years

yacht

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when

completed and ready for use.

W BERREERTE (@)
EXTHAYXERRRENERS
ZEMBHRRENEBEL B RBFEMR
BAEREEEZZWEHLRHERNRE A
HEGMBBRERZEREBARN -

NEZHEREDZBENDE BERR
BEEZESUEAFHUEREMBEE
BARGEEEREREE BB HOMGEE
ZAUEAFEHRMOT

HELHRIEFT BERRBTZ2HE
FH REAPRES

HEZFEE RBT-HEEH

B R e 10E 2045

B -HER 58

WAERE

B R BERE 58

i —#% BMERRBEEE 2 TRBHE
EFfRzAERFY ZEBZ2RERE
HEBRIERES NG LEBFRAN
E-NGREE UERFHRNTELSER
IPREENREFEAEBETRINEE
EIE o

CHSHEIANME BERRHFERE RE
MEZRNREEXEHREARHEZE
BT EERAREENSHRIERER -
REEKRLILBAZFERABRER 2F
AHERRE2BE  HHERSIRRF
HEAEEERESHRZER

EEIR
FRIREHEET 2T HINBRHEAKRE
HAEMRESENE BEFTHE -BA
AREBREERA EXRIRTIRAE
ERASENIBEEEEZNE BERR
BER -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#R R Mz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in

the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level and are not amortised. The useful life of a
trademark with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

24 FEEHHENBE @)

BRENE

REVEEFFLHREFESFRIE
SWAR/REXBEAE MFARE
ERHEENIRBERETHRAE HF
—REBBEPHERAZ(BEELRER
O ERENEEZZYELEHER
TZHEER) ZENENTERE 8
BREEAR FIR ROLHERR  REW
EDBEBRRBERRZDERRZA R
Bk -

ARENMELABEEELECETENHEE
EFEFAREXR-

REVEBBEILEEE Z2EMBEENE
BESHEFENFBRER -

EREVFEBLZEZGRADERS &
AREHZRAAEREARBRSEN
RZMERTA - A KB A ERZE
EERAMERRRENE AAEEER
BIME BERREEFTEIML2BE
BZWEAR EZERABERALE M
ZMEZHEREAEERAAERRERZZ
HoRARBLEAINE BERKRBER
B o BRI BEHAR -

[k
AENATERFHETERAER -BR7F
EREHNBEESFUERIELERS
MHEBEMLEEERENS  WEEAFLE
H-EBFRNBENTEAFHRESFF
Higs MBEARERFROTERS
BERL B UHEAFHHESTMG
REENEE  BREREEANR-



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#% 3R M=

31 March 2012 —E——_F=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBENEBE @)

(continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric and yarn, cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and, for work in progress and finished goods, cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and accessories, cost
is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all costs
of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal or to make the sale.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus
transaction cost, except in the case of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bills receivables, held-to-maturity investments, other
receivables, long term rental deposits and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the income statement. The loss

arising from impairment is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBENEBE @)

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in other income and gains or
finance costs in the income statement. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them
in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets. This evaluation
does not affect any financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option at designation
as these instruments cannot be reclassified after initial
recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESHBRENEE (&)
(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) CRMEEREH)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost BEBHEKEIARZz2HEE

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through”
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans
and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus,
in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable
transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBENEBE @)

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
an amount due to an associate, other payables and certain
accruals, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted
cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBENEBE @)

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

3 when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

3 in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the subsidy on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, time
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are not
restricted as to use.

Customer loyalty programme
The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing
operation which allows customers to accumulate award credits

when they purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products
sold and the award credits issued, with the consideration
allocated to the award credits being equal to their fair value.
Fair value is determined by applying statistical techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBENEBE @)

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)  from the rendering of services, when the services have
been provided;

(¢) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) franchise and royalty income, on a time proportion basis,
over the franchise periods; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

31 March 2012 —E——_F=H=+—H

24 FEEHHENEBE @)

BERA (&)

ERRENZIX G (&

REGEXZ 2HARBREER 2B M-
ERER/IREGESIBTHERNS
HER - TEBAZASEBREHRER
REFEXSZMER ZRFTRX I RB
EEHERZEERAEBHNRERER
ZHERETABEZHREMT BRAFBR
MBRFFAZEBDRRZHHIRHAR
FRERRAERZEH -

HRBERTEBE2EAN  TSEIARM
X ERBRARTEBERALERBK
e REEEXIZHRI ZERBEEER
SHAMKRR SIRBEFEEBHE 2B
MT  FETSHROEAFEBREEITE
HER HEFECHEE -

EREEREGRREENR AR RER
ERRENE FREGRAKRERLER
XS HEMEBEMERRENZH
RE2nnE REREZHEINNES
21 HERAMX

ERSAERERE ERAERUEAE
HMEYVHRIZZETARER 2H
X BREASEIERETESN ZFBEBK
HrEBERZRE - R HEWEUE 28
ERFREBEA TAREAFERERE
B ZEUERHRE WERMM WHEA
RERE B -

MATEBREZEEZEDIRTESR
BRI RRSEEINRDEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements B &3 R M =T

31 March 2012 —E——_F=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBENEBE @)

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only
to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that
had not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those granted on or after
1 April 2005.

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are taken to the income
statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trademarks

In accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group
determines whether trademarks are impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which the trademarks are related.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks were
classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. This
conclusion is supported by the fact that the Group’s trademark
legal rights are capable of being renewed indefinitely at
insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration,
related to well known and long established fashion brands, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are
expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets the Group re-evaluates the useful
lives of the trademarks each year to determine whether events
or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite
useful lives of the trademarks. The carrying amount of
trademarks at 31 March 2012 was HK$33,293,000 (2011:
HK$33,293,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) by reference to current prices in an active market
for properties of a different nature, condition and location (or
subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences; (ii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and (iii) independent valuations. The
carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2012 was
HK$193,278,000 (2011: HK$169,094,000).

Write-down/write-back of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based
on the estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of the inventories and the write-down charge/write-
back amount in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31 March 2012
was HK$2,712,541,000 (2011: HK$2,960,378,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances for trade and other receivables
Impairment allowances for trade and other receivables are
based on the assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. The identification of impairment allowances
requires management judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying values of the receivables and impairment or its reversal
in the period in which such estimate has been changed. The
carrying amount of trade and other receivables at 31 March
2012 was HK$910,400,000 (2011: HK$839,515,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn

segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessory segment; and

() the "others” segment principally comprises the provision
of repair and maintenance services for motor vehicles, the

provision of franchise services, and properties investment.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
before tax except that interest income, finance costs and share
of profit of an associate, net of tax are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits and investment in an
associate as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

3.

31 March 2012 —E——_F=H=+—H
FESTTHE R A @)

CRR:ESESE )

FE Y AR 50 R B it FE Ui BR 6 et 1B 2E A

FE Uk AR 3R R H fh B U BR TR B E R AT
HFERERREMERERTEREE
fEd - BBIHEEREREEEFL A
Rt - ZERBCERERAFERERR
LRzt AEBEEZEETEEEEMG
STREHEAcERREREEARRBE
FEBESE FRERR H b B UK
MR- ZE——-F=A=+—-BzZHKEE
% 78 910,400,000 T (=T — —F B ¥
839,515,0007T) °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. ZEIEBEH @)
(@) The following tables present revenue, profit and certain @) TRAXEEBZE-ZEZ-—-=A

asset, liability and expenditure information of the Group
for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011:

=Et+t-AR=F-—-H=ZA=+-—
ALEFEZEBED BB EF R
HEE -BERIEEN:

Group £E

Production,

dyeing and sale of

Retailing and

distribution of casual

knitted fabricand yarn  apparel and accessory Eliminations Consolidated
HATRRLZ ERR&GNZ
EHRESR ZERAH Hity 5
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Z%-Cf Z%--F -®--F "2--F -B-"F "%-—F "R-"F “B--F “¥--F "8--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥TT BETr EEFTr BEFn EETn BETr E¥Tr EB¥Fr E¥Fn  EETx
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
CHD) (48 1&4T)
Segment revenue: SEBA:
Sales to external EFHNREF
customers 6,976,171 5,971,395 6,766,420 5,856,617 23,236 33,768 — — 13,765,827 11,861,780
Intersegment sales PEMZHE — — — — 5,200 4,981 (5,200) (4,981) - -
Other revenue HiA 55,076 95,637 41,289 (3,559) 68,820 28,900 (3,803) (9,828) 161,382 111,150
Total EH 7,031,247 6,067,032 6,807,709 5,853,058 97,256 67,649 (9,003) (14,809) 13,927,209 11,972,930
Segment results DEEE 691,749 908,417 157,164 407,130 71,747 38,147 — — 920,660 1,353,694
Interest income FEKA 181,254 76,063
Finance costs BRER (37,651)  (25,817)
Share of profit of an EAEHE DN RER
associate, net of tax BREERE 63,956 55,644
Profit before tax BRBE AT A 1,128,219 1,459,584
Income tax expense g (169,406)  (202,030)
Profit for the year REERF 958,813 1,257,554
Assets and liabilities: BERARE:
Segment assets PEEE 7,321,302 6,566,667 2,694,515 2,258,500 246,797 222,835 (1,170,129)  (666,327) 9,092,485 8,381,675
Investment in an associate ~ REFE AT 2 RE 101,830 132,568
Unallocated assets AOMERE 4,282,008 3,745,798
Total assets BEE 13,436,323 12,260,041
Segment liabilities PEEE 2,746,174 1,808,213 1,729,985 1,325,144 75,925 66,837 (966,807)  (424,269) 3,585,277 2,775,925
Unallocated liabilities FPWEE 3,981,961 3,971,429
Total liabilities BafE 7,567,238 6,747,354
Other segment information: H {5 EEH :
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation 224,302 228,722 119,112 87,512 1,779 1,641 — — 345,193 317,875
Capital expenditure BARMRE 57,542 80,068 191,643 109,188 19 13 — — 249,204 189,269
Other non-cash expenses/ ~ E 3B E X H/
(income) (B A) (1,769) 32,706 (30,240) 20,187 51 55 — — (31,958) 52,948
Net fair value gains on RENENLE
investment properties W& — — — — 43,412 9,800 — — 43,412 9,800
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. EESEER @
(b) Geographical information (b) HEHSE
The following table presents geographical revenue and TRAAEBESEE-_ZE—_—F=A1
non-current asset information of the Group for the years =+—-BEK=—E——F=Z=A=+1+-—
ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011: BLEEZHHBRARFRTDEE
R
Group &

USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others Eliminations Consolidated
EL:] PE AR BE ) Hib e &4
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
CRCECE-FECR-CE RS- -FCR-CECR -FCR-CECR--FCR-CECR--FfCR-CECR--FCR-ECR--F

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
EMTFr BRI E¥Fr BETn BEFr BETn BETr E¥Tn EETrn E¥Tn EETrn E¥Tn BRI BETr
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

)

(i) Revenue from i) HREFRA

external customers

Segment revenue: kO
Sales to external EFHREE
customers 5096378 4,301,085 6,132,924 5218586 621,227 592,281 747,756 750,563 1,167,542 999,265 - — 13,765,827 11,861,780

(ii) Non-currentassets: (i) ¥RBEE:

Non-current assets FRBEE - — 2255986 2276809 - — 590577 559267 109,949 110,990  (366,086) (351873) 2590,426 2,595,193
The Group’s geographical revenue and non-current assets, TEBMBUARTEERIES
excluding long term rental deposits, information are RENERBDEEER T D BIRE
based on the locations of the markets and assets, TMEREEZFEMDE -
respectively.

() Information about major customers (0 EEEFZEHR
No single external customer (2011: Nil) contributes more AER BBEE-ININREF(ZE—
than 10% to the Group's revenue during the year. —FIE)NBRAGAEBRNEA

10% 2 ko
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA HAR K
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net WA "AXEEEX5E EHNREER
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and BRNMHNECHERZFE FTIRERKE
trade discounts; the value of services rendered and franchise HEBENETCEREFKRA -

and royalty income.

An analysis of the revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA B ARRKEZESHWOT :
Group
&
2012 2011
—EB-——fF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$’000
B F T B F T
Revenue: WA
Sale of goods HEEm 13,631,922 11,753,154
Rendering of services =R 7% 127,882 95,594
Franchise and royalty income BIREREREA 6,023 13,032
13,765,827 11,861,780
Other income and gains: HA W AR W # :
Interest income FME WA 181,254 76,063
Net fair value gains on foreign SMETESRMIA
exchange derivative financial instruments DNAEWRFERE
(note 23) (KtaF23) 21,478 24,357
Gross rental income on REYWEHESKA
investment properties wzg 18,344 7,881
Compensation received from landlords for XEIRBLLEHEHAM
early termination of leasing agreements EEEE 8,390 —
Compensation from suppliers for MAEESHERS
defective goods B 13,780 10,765
Net fair value gains on investment REMELABERE FE
properties (note 14) (Bt 14) 43,412 9,800
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE BERRE
plant and equipment 18 B W 5,634 1,737
Scrap sales el E 2,211 2,012
Government subsidies KT # Bh K 17,430 14,884
Sundry income HMIEIW A 30,703 39,714

342,636 187,213
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. ER®AESF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBZBRHBRADEMNS R (L) :
(crediting):
Group
%
2012 2011
—B-—fF =
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T B F T
Cost of inventories sold* EEEY 2 AR 9,691,759 7,866,089
Depreciation e 13 344,605 317,291
Recognition of prepaid land AL HEERZER
lease payments 15 588 584

Employee benefit expenses, including EERFFX  @FEESH

directors’ and senior management'’s EREEASHNS
remuneration (note 7): (Hia£7) -
Wages, salaries and other allowances IE HehEMEER 1,675,576 1,365,150
Retirement benefit scheme BAREREE
contributions Hm= 10,148 9,621
1,685,724 1,374,771
Minimum lease payments under KREHET 2R
operating leases in respect of land BFEREHES
and buildings & A 755,613 582,298
Contingent rents under operating KEHETZ2HA
leases He 684,774 575,783
Minimum lease payments under REHETZHER
operating leases in respect of BHKEES
plant and machinery 2 8,292 7,834
Auditors’ remuneration 1% Ll 2,876 2,854
Gain on disposal of items of HENE BERRKRMBER
property, plant and equipment I &= (5,634) (1,737)
Net foreign exchange gains, ENWESE FEF
excluding net fair value gain on INE
foreign exchange derivative TEERmIAEDARE
financial instruments & F R (113,041) (89,635)
Gross rental income on RENEBRS WA
investment properties i (18,344) (7,881)
Less: Outgoings X 1,209 1,756
Net rental income HeEWAFE (17,135) (6,125)
Provision/(write-back of provision) for ~ R EEE (EFEE)
slow-moving inventories (38,660) 54,684
Net fair value gains on BREMEAARERS FHE
investment properties 14 (43,412) (9,800)
Impairment of trade receivables FE R SR B 22 12,336 1
# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$619,742,000 (2011: # EEEYZREFYBEEHEIAE - 7
HK$596,229,000) of staff costs, depreciation, minimum lease E KEHETZREHCEHARRZFE
payments under operating leases and provision/write-back of g E(E IR 0] B #5619,742,0005T (= F——
provision for slow-moving inventories which are also included in F : jB#596229000T) TR L& BB R
the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these HEBE AR o

types of expenses.
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EENESREBEAEMESREN

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEEVyMES

EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration BEEME

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BRELHESFLTRAREBAAESE
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and Section 161 of the Hong 1611 AEEESME2HBBNT ¢

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
-
2012 2011
—g-—% —E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Fees: WwWE
Executive directors BITES 50 50
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTES 990 930
1,040 980
Other emoluments: Hit < -
Executive directors: BITES:
Salaries, allowances and e RMERIERE
benefits in kind &R 36,691 37,891
Performance related bonuses* RERMIEA* 63,426 65,100
Compensation for non-competition TERBEALENEE
undertaking 4,960 —
Retirement benefits scheme B ARTE R ST B
contributions 71 54
Long service payment on PR R R
retirement bR 7% & — 213
105,148 103,258
106,188 104,238
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to * RRAHTEEZHETEBEALAEE R
discretionary performance payments not exceeding a certain B EBLEFINETEZLEIERBIES T
percentage of the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of FKBHETEAT o

the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EENSRETEAEMESRAN

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEEFMES @
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEM 2 (&)
(a)  Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHTESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REREZINFBELHAHTES
during the year were as follows: WEWMT
2012 2011
o T
HK$’'000 HK$°000
BETF T B F T
Au Son Yiu B LR 330 310
Cheng Shu Wing B 5 88 330 310
Wong Tze Kin, David EHR(RZ=ZZE——F
(resigned on 1 April 2011) 9 B — HE#HE) — 310
Law Brian Chung Nin BHER=-E——F
(appointed on 1 April 2011) A —HEZE) 330 —
990 930
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER A/ (ZZ2E——F :8)@H
independent non-executive directors during the year YHHTESIHEHMBMS -
(2011: Nil).
(b)  Executive directors (b)) HITEE

Salaries, Retirement Compensation
allowances Performance benefit Long service for non-
and benefits in related scheme paymenton  competition Total
Fees kind bonuses contributions  retirement  undertaking remuneration

FeoRME  REHA  BAKER REARIN FERBEH
#E FREEF A FEER RERES H#EE kb
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT  BETRT BETT BETT BEFT

2012 —B-C-f
Poon Bun Chak BE 10 12,613 34,618 13 — — 47,254
Poon Kei Chak BEE 10 8,784 8,417 13 — — 17,224
Poon Kwan Chak (resigned &332 (R=F—— %
on 1 April 2011) A — A BHE) — — — — - 4,960 4,960
Poon Kai Chak EEE 10 6,239 8,700 13 — — 14,962
Ting Kit Chung THs 10 6,213 8390 20 - - 14,633
Poon Ho Wa (appointed &M% (KR=F——%
on 1 April 2011) A —HAEZ) 10 2,842 3,301 12 — — 6,165
50 36,691 63,426 Al — 4,960 105,198
2011 —B--F
Poon Bun Chak BWE 10 12,212 34,823 12 — — 47,057
Poon Kei Chak BHE 10 8,307 8,936 12 — — 17,265
Poon Kwan Chak (resigned &2 (K =F—— £
on 1 April 2011) A — A BHE) 10 5,266 4,000 6 213 - 9,495
Poon Kai Chak EEE 10 6,060 8,836 12 — — 14,918
Ting Kit Chung THs 10 6,046 8,505 12 - - 14,5573
50 37,891 65,100 54 213 — 103,308
There was no arrangement under which a director waived WERESREFRNRNESIRZRER
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. A E R
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EENESHETEBEBAEMESREAN

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEEyMES @)

EMPLOYEES (continued)

Senior management’s remuneration EREBAEMS

Senior management's remuneration for the year were within the AEESHREBEAEHESBN TIEHE :

following bands:

2012 2011
—g-=% —F——%
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A B AE
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 754,000,001 7T £ /& # 4,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 78 %5 3,500,001 7T £ 78 # 4,000,000 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 7 %5 3,000,001 7T £ 78 # 3,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 7T £ /& # 2,500,000 7T 1 1
Five highest paid employees INEsFMES
The five highest paid individuals employed by the Group during A4 &E EFMALTRERAZAE
the year were all directors, details of whose remuneration are T HFWHACERALNZESH 2
set out in the “Directors’ remuneration” above. A °
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HMBEAR

Group
S
2012 2011

—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts AREFREZHEFEN
wholly repayable within five years RITERREXZANE 37,651 25,817
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

Bi 1R

ERNESHERFARE BRI 5
FERBER UB E165%(=F — —F:
16.5%) R EF - EHMMBENERFE
BIR DREBEFANEBEEBEE LR EE
EBZRITBERFHE-

2012
—E-—F

2011
—_E——F
HK$°000
BT T

HK$°000
BETFT

Group: &£58:

Hong Kong and mainland China taxes: EBRPEAERIE:
Current year provision TEEEME
Under-provision in prior years ETEERBTERE
Deferred tax (note 28) 5 FE 5 18 (fff &£ 28)

Tax charge for the year REERIE

124,621 171,822
1,745 350
43,040 29,858
169,406 202,030

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rate, are as follows:

ERAARARENBAAFAER EZER
ZBRBAEN U EEER Rt E 2B EMH
REAFERERUERBEFANT ¢

Profit before tax

Tax at the domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the
jurisdictions concerned
Adjustments in respect of current
tax of previous years
Profits attributable to an associate
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on
the distributable profits of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries (note 28)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets on
tax losses
Tax losses utilised from previous periods
Others

Tax charge for the year

R B A 5 A

RERNREBRAAEERERN
ZEWBERTEN
B
REFENSHHRE
B
L E D EEF
BAHB 2 WA
FHEHBBIR2ER
FAEE A EHE LD E A
2IRE R #Y10% T8 305 18
VS (Bt 28)
BHEBECABRIDELHE
&=
CHABEHEHERES
Hith

REEHIR

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to

Group

=
2012 2011
—E—CF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT B F T
1,128,219 1,459,584
138,142 186,864
1,745 350
(13,353) (11,613)
(45,676) (34,619)
48,015 28,657
35,867 26,699
8,843 8,793
(5,775) (2,987)
1,598 (114)
169,406 202,030

BE 15 Bt & 1 B B3R 5 8 516,973,000 7T (=

HK$16,973,000 (2011: HK$14,741,000) is included in “Share of
profit of an associate, net of tax” in the consolidated income
statement.

T— —F B %14,741,000T) EFFAGRE
MBRZIEEHEQATAEF BRBEEF
ECl D
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

10.

of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 includes a
profit of HK$943,747,000 (2011: HK$757,773,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 31(b)).

11. DIVIDENDS

Interim of HK26.0 cents
(2011: HK23.0 cents) per share
Proposed final of HK24.0 cents
(2011: HK30.0 cents) per share

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
March 2012 and 31 March 2011 have been calculated as follows:

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for that year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during that year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the
years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 is based on
the profit for that year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during that year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all
share options into ordinary shares during that year.

R HA AR B %5 26.01L

(=T —— & BH23.01L)
R AR 275 B8 5 24,01
—E——F BH30.01L)

10.

11.

12.

RAREBRESERBEERLER

BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HLEEE" 7
AXRRAZHBERERAZAQARAEBERER
i & B (L7 6 % R B % %5 943,747,000 T
(=8 —— 5 : B #757,773,000 7T ) (Ff 5
31(b)) °

3=\

2012 2011

—B-=F —EB-—F
HK$°000 HK$°000

BETFT EBETT

354,014 310,825

326,725 408,284

680,739 719,109

REERHRZABREAGRAQIARRY
BERTHRRBEFAE LESB-

al

=

BEALCAEERREMAESR
el
—E--F=ZA=+-AR=-F-——F=
A=Z+-BLEFEZEARBEEZER
BRAHEMT :

(@) EXSREF
EAXABREBANNDEARDEBES
FREEREZFEBNRRZFA
CRTEERZMEFHREFEHE -

(b) HBEESREA
BEZZE-—Z-—f=A=+—-RBKZ=
E-——F=ZA=+—-HBLEFEENH
BHREEBRBADEAQARAEZERS
FEEEMZEERANTE - AR
FTEFRCRTEER ZMEF
REDARHEELASREFAZR
B RERIERZERNUEETER
FERERZEARNMEFL IR -
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. 5B A QAT EESZFFEESR

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY B R @)
(continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are EXARBBERE2EREBANGTENT :

based on the followings:

2012 2011
—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT B F T
Earnings BF
Profit attributable to ordinary RATREBEEMESE
equity holders of the Company, EAEER > AEFERER
used in the basic earnings per BREF
share calculation 930,340 1,133,241

Number of shares

gyl |
2012
—E-—_fF
Shares igv)
Weighted average number of shares AEFEEREREFZER
in issue during the year used in the 2RITRGMEF
basic earnings per share calculation B & 1,361,164,738 1,343,596,236

Effect of dilution — weighted average BEoHFE -—NMEFEHZER

number of ordinary shares: BRE

Share options B IR A 12,208,245 14,201,889
Weighted average number of shares AEFEHREERERERN 2

in issue during the year used in the FRAEBTRMDMNE

diluted earnings per share calculation 15 % & 1,373,372,983 1,357,798,125
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

13. % BERRHE
£d |

Leasehold
land and

buildings

HEL#H
kgF
HK$'000
BETT

Leasehold

improvements

HERT
%
HK$000
BEFT

Plant and

machinery

BER
i
HK$000

BEFT

Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment
B KE
EBAZE
RE
HK$000
BETTT

Motor
vehicles and
E

nE
%3 3
HK$'000

BEFT

att
HK$°000
BT

31 March 2012 —Z2--—fF=Zf=+-H
At 1 April 2011: RZE--£WA-H:

Cost or valuation BAREE 1,357,420 494375 2,822,202 238,928 98,826 5,011,751

Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (455,303) (352,694)  (1,763,011) (203,536) (76,429)  (2,850,973)

Net carrying amount REFE 902,117 141,681 1,059,191 35,392 22,397 2,160,778
At 1 April 2011, net of R-ZZ--5MA-H

accumulated depreciation EMBREHIE 902,117 141,681 1,059,191 35,392 22397 2,160,778
Additions RE — 167,077 31,616 27,692 5,179 231,564
Disposals HE (3,154) (84) — (662) (1,091) (4,991)
Depreciation provided during FRITE

the year i (54,502) (94,919) (166,240) (18,696) (10,248) (344,605)
Transfer from construction in ERIBEA

progress (note 16) (KisF16) — — 2,557 — — 2,557
Surplus on revaluation EhBH 3,955 — — — — 3,955
Transfer to investment properties HERENE

(note 14) (Hizt14) (5,500) — - - - (5,500)
Transfer from investment REMEBA

properties (note 14) (et 14) 24,450 — — — - 24,450
Foreign exchange adjustments HNERE 29,296 5,607 39,519 1,343 576 76,341
At 31 March 2012, net of R-Z-—5zZf=+-8"

accumulated depreciation CHBREITE 896,662 219,362 966,643 45,069 16,813 2,144,549
At 31 March 2012: RZZE-ZF=Zf=+-H:

Cost or valuation BASEE 1,418,744 655,812 2,967,011 269,601 94,134 5,405,302

Accumulated depreciation ZHE (522,082) (436,450)  (2,000,368)  (224,532) (77,321)  (3,260,753)

Net carrying amount FEEE 896,662 219,362 966,643 45,069 16,813 2,144,549
Analysis of cost or valuation: BASEED

At cost BA 1,405,142 655,812 2,967,011 269,601 94,134 5,391,700

At 31 March 1992 R-AN=%=ZA=+-H

valuation HE 13,602 — — — — 13,602
1,418,744 655,812 2,967,011 269,601 94,134 5,405,302




Notes to the Financial Statements B iR & M5

31 March 2012 =F—=#=HA=+—H

13. ME BERSKE@R
£H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Group

Leasehold
land and

buildings

HEL#H
kgF
HK$'000
BETT

Leasehold

improvements

HERT
1
HK$000

AT

Plant and

machinery

BEER
i
HK$000

BEFT

Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment
B KE
EBAZE
RE
HK$000

BEFT

Motor
vehicles and
E

nE
R
HK$'000

BEFT

att
HK$°000

BETFT

31 March 2011 —E-—-FZA=1+-H
At 1 April 2010: RZE-ZEMA-H:
Cost or valuation RAE L E 1,306,198 398,236 2,668,273 220,277 93,416 4,686,400
Accumulated depreciation ZiINE (387,117) (294,771)  (1,541,094) (178,626) (66,524)  (2,468,132)
Net carrying amount REFE 919,081 103,465 1,127,179 41,651 26,892 2,218,268
At 1 April 2010, net of R-ZZ-ZFEMA-H-
accumulated depreciation EMBREHIE 919,081 103,465 1,127,179 41,651 26,892 2,218,268
Additions RE — 94,996 55,910 14,540 6,126 171,572
Disposals HE (23 (132) (330) (1,457) — (1,942)
Depreciation provided during the year R T E %% (52,303) (62,390) (170,546) (20,490) (11,562) (317,291)
Foreign exchange adjustments SHERE 35,362 5,742 46,978 1,148 91 90,171
At 31 March 2011, net of WRZE-—-£=fA=+—-H>
accumulated depreciation BHIRENTE 902,117 141,681 1,059,191 35,392 22397 2,160,778
At 31 March 2011: R-ZE-——-&£=ZfF=+-1:
Cost or valuation RS E 1,357,420 494,375 2,822,202 238,928 98,826 5,011,751
Accumulated depreciation ZiINE (455,303) (352,694)  (1,763,011) (203,536) (76,429)  (2,850,973)
Net carrying amount REFE 902,117 141,681 1,059,191 35,392 22,397 2,160,778
Analysis of cost or valuation: BAR GBI
At cost RA 1,343,818 494,375 2,822,202 238,928 98,826 4,998,149
At 31 March 1992 R-ARZF=ZA=+-8
valuation GE 13,602 — — — — 13,602
1,357,420 494,375 2,822,202 238,928 98,826 5,011,751
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ BERRKE@

An analysis of the leasehold land and buildings at 31 March
2012 is as follows:

1992
Professional
valuation

- AR=F
BEXftE
HK$'000
BETT

LRE B Z 5

Medium term leasehold land

&S

HK$000
BETT

R-ZZE-ZFZA=Z=+—HZHEET#HEK
BFEIFWOT

1992
Professional
valuation Total
—hh=%§

aF HEMGE
HK$'000 HK$000
BY T BY T

Total

A
HK$'000

BYTFT

&
HK$'000
BT

and buildings situated HELHR
in Hong Kong g3 13,602 119,517 133,119 13,602 98,853 112,455
Medium term leasehold land R E B U=
and buildings situated FHEIEE L R
outside Hong Kong p=4==t — 1,285,625 1,285,625 — 1,244,965 1,244,965
13,602 1,405,142 1,418,744 13,602 1,343,818 1,357,420

During the year, certain leasehold land and buildings of the
Group were transferred to investment properties since the date
of change in use. Such leasehold land and buildings were
revalued at the date of change in use by directors at an
aggregate open market value of HK$5,500,000 based on their
existing use. A revaluation surplus of HK$3,955,000 resulting
from the above valuation has been credited to equity.

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were
revalued in 1992 by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Since 1993, no further revaluation of the Group's
leasehold land and buildings had been carried out as the Group
has relied upon the exemption granted under the transitional
provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment, from the requirement to carry out future
revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were
stated at valuation at that time. Had such leasehold land and
buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$5,331,000 (2011: HK$5,767,000).

RAEAFE AEEBHEELHREFR
NEABRENLRERRENME -EER
RERZRESAZAKZHEHEL R
BFEMEDHETIEEME B 5500000
TeRELMEMMEECELRBRABY
3,955,000t E st AR ©

MHFHEELTHWREFER-AAZEF
BB UEETMMETES - AEEBE —
hWAZFR TEVBHEEE L HREFTHE
E—SEHLE BEAEEREBIHE
BIE163R Y ¥ BMERZHHEBARIBE
MR BRAHBSUERGEEARNY
¥ BERRKBETABRBEEM M
ZEHELIHEEFREELERANRESIT
Bk HIRESEELNHBMS5,331,000
(=& ——%F : B¥5,767,0007T) °
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at beginning of year A& # BRE &
Net gain from fair value adjustments 2 R {EFAE NN FEE

32T B

(note 6) (Mtate)

Transfer from property, plant and BEYE- BMERRKXE
equipment (note 13) B (Mt 13)

Transfer to property, plant and EEYE -BMERRE
equipment (note 13) (BtaE13)

Foreign exchange adjustments INEFE

Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE

The investment properties with carrying value of
HK$142,700,000 and HK$50,578,000 are situated in Hong Kong
and Taiwan, respectively. All investment properties are held
under medium term leases. The investment properties with
carrying value of HK$86,200,000 were revalued on 31 March
2012 by the directors with reference to the current prices of
similar properties in an active market at nearby locations
adjusted to reflect those differences; as well as recent prices of
similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices. The investment
properties with carrying value of HK$50,578,000 and
HK$56,500,000 were revalued on 31 March 2012 by Colliers
International and Chung, Chan & Associates respectively,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on an open
market, existing use basis. The investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

14. REWMH
Group
S

2012 2011
—E—C—fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETFT
169,094 155,170
43,412 9,800
5,500 —
(24,450) —
(278) 4,124
193,278 169,094

Bk M {E & 8 %142,700,000 T K &
50,578,000 TR EME S U REBR
BE REVEX2IRPBHEIEE K
{8 A /& %86,200,000t 2 B EWE TH A
EESZBATIRTIS M i BE LY
EMRER-_ZE—-_F=ZA=+—H#EH
EMURMEZE SR BETETREN
TEFRENENGEIARE FHAE
URMREMBERZ BHPEREBRONK
BoRZT-—_F=ZA=+—-—8 FKAE
# 78 # 50,578,000 7T & /& #5 56,500,000 7T 4
REMES R BEESEER 2B YIS
e BT EGREMEESEMRE
ET BRAHTESREERAZELEENTE
o REWMEDULLHAYATFE=S
HAERERTERME3S) -
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15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. AL HEER
Group
&
2012 2011
—E—C—fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$’000
B F T B F T
Carrying amount at beginning of year R E ¥ RE & 24,142 24,420
Recognised during the year (note 6) F AR (fit6) (588) (584)
Foreign exchange adjustments INE BB 275 306
Carrying amount at end of year RERKHEE 23,829 24,142
Current portion included in REBHEFERENRE T2
prepayments, deposits REAMERERRA
and other receivables (680) (673)
Non-current portion IE R B EB 1D 23,149 23,469
The above leasehold lands are all held under medium term QEZHEL I URBABENEERLR

leases and are situated outside Hong Kong. BB T o
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31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16. EEIRE
Group
&=
2012 2011
—®-=% —E2-——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
At beginning of year READ 75,991 55,303
Additions wE 17,640 17,697
Transfer to property, plant and EHEYE -BERRE
equipment (note 13) (Bfat13) (2,557) —
Foreign exchange adjustments F R 3,253 2,991
At end of year RER 94,327 75,991
17. TRADEMARKS 17. BE&
Group
&5
2012 2011
—B--F =%
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Cost and carrying amount RERKER
at end of year BRTE{E 33,293 33,293
18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. REE QR 2RE

Group
S
2012 2011

—E——F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Share of net assets EihEEFSH 101,830 132,568
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. REEERNT 28 E @)
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BMENTZ2ERWNT :

Percentage of

ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of incorporation and attributable to
issued shares operations the Group  Principal activity
=5 &) = i AR 3L % AEEESLE
R4 KER 3 B @AM FEER
Megawell Industrial Limited Ordinary shares of Hong Kong/Mainland 50  Manufacture of
("Megawell”) HK$1 each China and Vietnam garments
in nominal value
BESHBERDA BREEBB1ITZ &8,/ PEKE 50 RRIREE
(R=2ES) EER K #E
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREJFEREMBERR 2B ERH
information of Megawell extracted from its financial statements: =

Group
-

2012 2011
—_EgE-—_F —_E——fF
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT B F T
Assets EE 544,118 672,642
Liabilities =R 331,420 390,116
Revenues A 1,368,572 1,215,533
Profit after tax B %1 1% 05 F 132,145 120,404

19. DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 19. BNBELT

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and EBRBEARMRNRTIIEER BFNERE
repayable on agreed credit terms. RIGFTEREAEN ©
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20. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

21.

2 EmHKRE
BB KA

Listed investments,
at amortised cost

At 31 March 2012, the investments have an aggregate nominal
value of HK$23,135,000, and bear interest ranging from 3.45%
to 4.00% per annum. The amortised cost of the held-to-maturity
investments has been computed as the amount initially
recognised minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest rate method
of any difference between the initially recognised amount and
the maturity amount. At the end of the reporting period, the
fair values of the held-to-maturity investments were not
materially different from their carrying amounts.

None of the held-to-maturity investments were either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in held-to-maturity
investments related to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials B
Work in progress EHER
Finished goods KR m

20.

21.

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

REIPHRE

Group
=m
2012 2011
—_E——F
HK$°000

BEFT

—E—C—fF
HK$°000
BETFT

23,384 —

MRZE-ZE=ZA=+—-H ZRENE
5T EE 5 8 #23,135,000t 0 EE RN F
345% F4.00% 2 - FEFHHREZE
BERANAEDRIBEINSERE
CEENAS BMEIBEEREEA
REHVNRERASEHEINPASECZSE
MEFBEBETE RESHR F£2F
HWRENAAEHAKREBEYESAE
o

ZEZIPNREVBEAHRAE B
REZIHNRETPNEHEEEIEIE
NN ERRERRE -

7
Group
-3
2012 2011
—E-C-F —E2——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETTT BET T
970,926 1,676,013
84,705 38,027
1,656,910 1,246,338
2,712,541 2,960,378
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. FEWER
Group
£
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BETF T BET T
Trade receivables FE U BR X 695,765 593,414
Impairment WA (12,349) (13)
683,416 593,401
Payment terms of the Group’s customers mainly range from AEEEFITERAAIEREBEIZI#E
“cash before delivery” to “within 90 days from the date of HEEMNIORAN ] HFBEERBHEUEH
invoice”. A significant portion of the customers trade with the MEREBMETRS - AEBEHEWKE
Group under documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to B —EBREETHEUEEEERK -
maintain strict credit control on its outstanding receivables and HRAEEREKREREBERSZEF Bt
has a policy to manage its credit risk. Since the Group's trade WHREANWEESEPRER - AEBEILER
receivables relate to a large number of customers, there is no HEWREREHREEETMAEARSIEMER
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold HEAZRE -BERERZRBIEME -

any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade

receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the MBEBR REEZAHERNKREESBE
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of 12,349,000 T (=& — — & : B #13,0007T)
impairment of HK$12,349,000 (2011: HK$13,000), is as follows: BZREWERMERRIMAOT :
Group
5

2012 2011

—E——f —E——f

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BETF T

Within 90 days 0HA 659,076 584,173

Over 90 days 90H U £ 24,340 9,228

683,416 593,401
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At beginning of year RED
Impairment of trade receivables (note 6) F& UX BR FUR & (ff5E6)

At end of year RER

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$12,349,000 (2011: HK$13,000) with a carrying
amount of HK$12,349,000 (2011: HK$13,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in
default or delinquency in payments. The Group does not hold

any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired WA TEETHE
Within 90 days past due BHI90 A A
Over 90 days past due BHI90A M £

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers that have a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

22. EEWBR (#)

FEWRSRERENZBHNT

Group

%E
2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BHF T
13 12
12,336 1
12,349 13

ELMERRIRERERISFELHENS
1B FE UK BR TR I3 48 78 15 12,349,000 T (= &
— —F B H13,0007T) ZLEREKETRH
IRTE{E 512,349,000 T (=& — —F 8%
13,0007T) ° Z LA B B R EEKRTS R
FTEANRREANES - AEBEILER
ZEREFAEANEFERREMIEAEA
MARFE o

WRREFTHE BRI 2 RE DTN
T

Group
1)

2012 2011
=E-—C-F —E2——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BEFT
633,731 483,392
48,461 79,284
1,224 30,725
683,416 593,401

At 3¢ 30 50 7 9 T 6L 0 2 E W ROE TR A M
BEF REBRFUBTEAMRER -

CEH BEFHREZERUREAS FHE
FEBARFERCBZEFEH 2B
AR ANAEZRLANREEERER
BEXREZ ZEFHNATZHRD
E U EFELRERE - AREALERZ
ERBFRERR AEEEAD -
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

23.

Forward currency contracts: REMNESH
Assets BE
Liabilities g8fE

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts

to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the

criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$21,478,000
(2011: HK$24,357,000) were credited to the income statement
during the year.

B RS RR MR

PfTEEMIA
Group
S
2012 2011
=E-—C—F —E2——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETTT BETFT
12,661 17,006
4,492 8,026

AEBCHETSERFTEHPEFER
HWEHIESHUEBREERRR RE
W BRRABERFAOIFEEIPINESTEE
BMAREEERBN21,478,000T (= F
— — 1 : % #%24,357,0007T) °

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. BERAEEEY
Group Company
5 AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®--% =-T-——-% Z=—%B--f =—T-—F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Cash and bank balances ReRVITER 258,310 487,037 148 162
Time deposits with original REITZBE=EAR
maturity of less than EH 2 EH
three months when acquired fE& 1,036,254 979,898 — —
Time deposits with original RETZB=M®@A
maturity of over three DA R E 2 EHR
months when acquired bEE 3,205,754 2,765,900 — —
4,500,318 4,232,835 148 162

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and the time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB”) amounted to HK$81,554,000 (2011: HK$365,774,000)
and HK$3,899,207,000 (2011: HK$3,142,038,000), respectively.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

RBEHR FEEUARBEE 2
BeRRTERRERAFTRD BB
7 81,554,000t ( =& — — F: B
365,774,000 7T ) K % #3,899,207,000 7T ( =
T — — 1 B13,142,038,0007T) - A R
RABKETEEHABEMEYR  HR
BHRBEARENIESBHRIREE SE
RAEEERE AEEEEERERE
ETHNEEB2RTEARELBAHEM
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 2. BERBEESEEYW &)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily WITEREESTARTEIRANZBRIUE
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for HERMNE -BHHEHERZERERA—
period less than or equal to one year depending on the FRUAT RIXEEZHNKRESFRM
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at EoOWREEAEHERANERRAEL -
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances RITEBREEHEFREFREERIFMNIRE
and time deposits are placed with creditworthy banks. 1T e
TRADE PAYABLES 25. MR
Group
&
2012 2011
—E—_—F —_E——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T
Trade payables FE A BR X 1,333,828 1,400,632
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the REMERR REZAHZESRAKRR
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DHWT

-
2012 2011
= —E-——fF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Within 90 days 90H A 1,301,175 1,383,556
Over 90 days 90H U £ 32,653 17,076
1,333,828 1,400,632
At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are RBEHAR BETRERAIEMER—KRA

non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. 90K HYBREA ©
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26. HttERERRRESAE
Group
5
2012 2011
—g-=% —E-——-F
HK$000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
Other payables H AT BR X 144,584 240,688
Accrued liabilities EtafE 291,704 246,887
436,288 487,575
Other payables and certain accruals are non-interest-bearing HitERERRBOEAEBERFHE
and have an average term of three months. BEF¥HERBA=MEA -
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. MERITER

Effective Effective
annual annual
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity  HK$000 (%) Maturity  HK$000
B B
FER=E FR=E
(%) (%) Z|H B
Current B
Bank loans IRITER within within
—unsecured  — 3K IR 1 year or 1 year or
0.52-1.77 on demand 3,193,332 0.56-0.95 on demand 3,024,535
R—FR R—FR
HIEER RIRER
Non-current EFRE
Bank loans IRITER 2013-2015 2012-2013
— unsecured —|IKH —E-=FZ —E-—FEZ
0.79-1.70 —E—-HEF 412,567 0.61-0.86 —E-=F 563,724

3,605,899 3,588,259
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Effective

ELLIE]]

interest rate

Company (%)
g T~
FH=x
(%)

Current B

Bank loans
— unsecured RITER

— K 9 —

Analysed into: '\ﬁ' :
Bank loans repayable: TERERD
Within one year or Eﬁ‘—ilﬁﬁfc
on demand RER
In the second year E-FR

In the third to
fifth years, inclusive

BEEEME

All bank borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars.

Maturity

31 March 2012 —&F—=

27. MHESRITER @)

Effective
annual
interest rate
(%)

BB

FF =

(%)

HK$’000

Maturity

E8 B

BZEELFA

Group

£

2012

—E——fF
HK$000
BETT

2011
—E——fF
HK$000
BT T

0.82-0.95

within
1 year

R—FR

F=H=+—H

HK$'000

76,667

Company

A
2012

—E—_—F

HK$’000
BETT

2011
—E——fF
HK$000
BB F T

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s banking facilities were

3,193,332 3,024,535 — 76,667
312,567 351,157 — —
100,000 212,567 — —

3,605,899 3,588,259 — 76,667

FERITERERBE -
RZZB-Z—F=ZA=+—H0 A5EENE
TEEDRARARAIDMDMHE DTG

supported by corporate guarantees from the Company and

certain of its subsidiaries.

EER-
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28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Withholding tax on the

28.

EEHERE

distributable profits of Depreciation allowance
the Group's PRC in excess of related Revaluation of
subsidiaries depreciation properties Others
ARENTENBAR
A # 2 K0E R 0 BHERTERAN
BENHE RERBE NEER Hit &5t
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“§--"f -2 £ _%-"f_-2 -§-B-"§-%F -F_8-"4_-% -F_-%--F_F—-F§
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$S'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BETT EEFT BETT BETn BE¥TT BETn BT BETn BT BETr
At beginning of year R E ] 72,671 45,972 (721) (721) 9,049 7,250 5317 3,957 86,316 56,458
Deferred tax charged/ £ [y 7E %I 8 3
(credited) to the k(ML)
income statement MEEHE
during the year (Htit9)
(note 9) 35,867 26,699 — — 7,846 1,799 (673) 1,360 43,040 29,858
Atend of year RER 108,538 72,671 (721) (721) 16,895 9,049 4,644 5317 129,356 86,316

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$746,982,000 (2011: HK$710,428,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries of which no assessable profits are expected

to be generated in the foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China

in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At 31 March 2012, the Company had no significant unrecognised
deferred tax asset/liability (2011: Nil).

AEBREBEEZHEFER B
#£746,982,000t( — & — — F: B &
710,428,0007T) * ZLELERBEBIEN DA
AERHFEAZERAFERERRZER
BHaf HRBHELEFEEEZHNERD
ARATREERIFAEEERRBERN BT
HEBEEELERZEBBETER

MEFEEFRBHE PEAXKENIE
CEAEFREAITREESROHKR SRR
10%RMRE - ZERB-FTENF—A
—HEBER YEANR-ZZLF+=A
Z+-RERELENFB - IFTREEATR
FBREENRE BHREEERESE
REEHBEHE BARAKENH RS
10% ° E AR BB 2SR EAKBERKL
WHBARAE-—ZEENFEF-A-—BENR
A2 ROBREEENBENEE -

AAREMEBRRKEZRE  TEDHE
AABRFAEBZBR

R-ZZE-Z—H=ZA=+—-0 ' K2QF
BEAARBREEHEEE BE(
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29. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised:
2,000,000,000 shares of

HK$0.05 each in nominal value

Issued and fully paid:

1,361,356,104 (2011: 1,360,846,104)
shares of HK$0.05 each

in nominal value

ERE

2,000,000,000 %
EBRE(EE0.057T

BEITRHAR:
1,361,356,104

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

29. BRAK
B 15

2012
—E-—_F

2011
—EF——F
HK$°000
BETT

HK$°000
BETFT

100,000 100,000

(ZE——% :1,360,846,104) &

BREEEE0.05T

A summary of the movements in the Company’s share capital

during the year is as follows:

At 1 April 2010

Exercise of share options

Transfer from share option
reserve

Acquisition of
non-controlling interests

Repurchase of shares

At 31 March 2011 and
1 April 2011
Exercise of share options
Transfer from share
option reserve

At 31 March 2012

—Z-ZEFWMA—-H
TR E
BERERE

BA
BEFER

&
= 88 IR 19

R-—ZE—-——F=HA=+—H
R-—Z-——F0EA—H
TREBRE
BERERE
BA

R-ZE—Z=F
=A=+—H

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

68,068 68,042

RABRARAFRN 2 SBBHRNT ¢

Share
premium

Number of Issued

L ETH share
account Total
R 2

% 18 AR
HK$’000
B F T

in issue
2817

capital
21T
R
HK$’000
BT T

R &8 E

HE
HK$000
BETFT

1,334,608,104 66,730 392,208 458,938
10,400,000 520 52,586 53,106
— — 1,125 1,125

16,000,000 800 141,600 142,400
(162,000) (8) (1,234) (1,242)
1,360,846,104 68,042 586,285 654,327
510,000 26 2,766 2,792

— — 615 615
1,361,356,104 68,068 589,666 657,734
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

29.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the subscription rights
attaching to 8,150,000 share options and 2,250,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription prices of HK$4.97 per share and
HK$5.60 per share (note 30), respectively, resulting in the issue of
10,400,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$53,106,000.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 24 September
2010 entered into between the Group and non-controlling
shareholders, the Group further acquired a 10% equity interest in
Baleno Holdings Limited by the issuance of 16,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at a price of HK$8.9 per share as a partial

consideration (note 32).

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company repurchased
162,000 of its ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value
from the market at a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,242,000 (including repurchase expenses of HK$4,000). These
repurchased ordinary shares were subsequently cancelled by the
Company and HK$1,234,000 (including repurchase expenses of
HK$4,000) has been debited to the share premium account of the
Company. In addition, the Company also transferred HK$8,000,
which is equivalent to the nominal value of these repurchased
shares, from retained profits to the capital redemption reserve as

set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the subscription rights
attaching to 100,000 share options and 410,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription prices of HK$4.97 per share and
HK$5.60 per share (note 30), respectively, resulting in the issue of
510,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$2,792,000.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to the

financial statements.

29.

B AR (47)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#R R Mz

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, and other employees of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 28 August 2002 and will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of share options permitted to be granted
under the Scheme was an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Board but is not more than ten years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of
the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

30.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. IBRESTE @
The following share options were outstanding under the MBEBR ZFEBTRITEZBRED
Scheme at the end of the reporting period: T

2012 2011
—®——f —E——f
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
nfEF g B iR hn#EFEH B
TREER A TREER #H
HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
5 )% 78 ¥ T F EBREET F
At beginning of year A E ) 5.37 30,090 5.30 40,490
Exercised during the year F£RE2T{E 5.48 (510) 5.11 (10,400)
At end of year RER 5.37 29,580 5.37 30,090
The weighted average closing price per share at the date of FRAETENBRERITEE BRI METF
exercise for share options exercised during the year was HERKTERBEEILAI T -
HK$9.41.
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RBEEHR RTEEREZTEERKR
outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TEHMRMOT :

Number of options

BREHE
Exercise price* Exercise period 2012
TEER* TR —E-——-F
HKS$ per share ‘000
EREBE T F
497 11 September 2002 to 10 September 2012 10,900 11,000
ZEEZHEANAT-HEZEZE-ZFhA+H
5.60 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014 17,100 17,100
CEENF=A-t+ARHEZE-—NE=A=-+HA
5.60 1 April 2006 to 25 March 2014 1,580 1,990

—EEARENA-BEZE-WUE=ZA=+HH

29,580 30,090
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in * FERBERITZEFER A L Al B IR SR AL IR
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the HEARAPEE MBI EEE T -

Company'’s share capital.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year, 510,000 (2011: 10,400,000) share options were
exercised resulted in the issue of 510,000 (2011: 10,400,000)
ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of
HK$25,500 (2011: HK$520,000) and share premium of
HK$3,381,000 (2011: HK$53,711,000), as further detailed in note
29 to the financial statements.

No share option was forfeited during the years ended 31 March
2012 and 31 March 2011.

At 31 March 2012, the Company had 29,580,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 29,580,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$1,479,000 and share premium of HK$157,302,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 29,580,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 2.2% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

30.
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#F=H=+—H

RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Company and the then nominal value of the issued
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of
acquisition, as a result of the reorganisation which
occurred before the listing of the Company’s shares in
1992.

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3
that permitted goodwill in respect of business
combinations which occurred prior to 2001, to remain
eliminated against consolidated retained profits. The
amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated retained
profits, arising from the acquisition of an associate prior
to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, was HK$110,648,000

as at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.

In accordance with the Macau Commercial Codes, Nice
Dyeing Factory (Macao Commercial offshore) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, whose principal
operation is conducted in Macau, is required to
appropriate annually not less than 25% of its profit after
tax to a legal reserve, until the balance of the reserve
reaches 50% of the entity’s capital fund. The reserve made

has fulfilled the statutory requirement accordingly.

31.

#E
(a)
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RESERVES (continued) 31. 4% @)
(b) Company (b) A7
Share Share Capital
premium option redemption Contributed Retained
Notes account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
& R &
B e i E R *E WERE BHERSR RKREBERN B
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
BEFT EBETFT BT T EBETT EETT EE¥TT
At 1 April 2010 R-ZZE-ZFMA—H 392,208 4,110 1,687 48,708 869 447,582
Acquisition of BAEER
non-controlling interests R 29 141,600 — — — — 141,600
Exercise of share options TEE R R 29 53,711 (1,125) — — 52,586
Repurchase of shares 5] 88 IR 17 29 (1,234) — 8 — 8) (1,234)
Total comprehensive income 7 £ £ 2 [H
for the year A EEEE — — — — 757,773 757,773
2010/2011 interim B2/ —F——HF
dividend FEAR B 11 — — — — (310,825)  (310,825)
2010/2011 proposed final B2/ —F——HF
dividend R R EA IR B 11 — — — — (408,284)  (408,284)
At 31 March 2011 and N-—EBE——F=A=+—8H
1 April 2011 E=—Z——%mMA—H 586,285 2,985 1,695 48,708 39,525 679,198
Exercise of share options TEERAE 29 3,381 (615) — — — 2,766
Total comprehensive income 78 £ £ 2 H
for the year F %R — — — — 943,747 943,747
2011/2012 interim —EB—— /B -_FFE
dividend hEAR B 11 — — — — (354,014)  (354,014)
2011/2012 proposed final —E-— /B -C"FFE
dividend BOR R EA R B 11 — — — — (326,725)  (326,725)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZT-——F=A=+-—H 589,666 2,370 1,695 48,708 302,533 944,972

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the

difference between the nominal value of the issued share

capital of the Company and the then combined net assets

of the subsidiaries acquired on the date of acquisition, as

a result of the reorganisation which occurred before the
listing of the Company’s shares in 1992. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a

distribution may be made out of the contributed surplus

under certain circumstances.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost

Due from subsidiaries

EEWRAD - A
& W Bft /&8 A &)

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

HAEARARODE-ANZF LS
ANER KRAZEHBHALX
DA CBATRA 2 E{E 2P
BLARKBEZAHEEREZ
EZE -BRBEARE-NAN-F28%
() TRETERTIREESH

Befe

32. RMBRARAZRE

Company
AT

2012 2011
— —E2——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETF T
48,908 48,908
340,903 773,506
389,811 822,414

HENELRZRNAER DEER EF
EREEEERS -
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32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32.

All subsidiaries, other than Trustland Inc, are indirectly held by

RB AR ZRE (@)
FRTrustland Incoh - FTEMIE A R HALD
AEEEE - TEMBATFEENT

the Company. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/registered
share capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Place of incorporation/
registration and operations

Principal activities

MR

BRREXLY

ERTEER EBER
RAEE

AR RS
PA=E
2012 2011
—E-——fF —EB——F

TEXEH

Trustland Inc* British Virgin Islands/ US$18,000 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
KERLES BE 18,000 % 7T REER
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 100 Sale of finished knitted
Non-voting deferred fabric and dyed yarn
HK$3,125,000
KERBERDE E] EERAE1,0007T HEHATRELY
743,125,000 T
Texwinca Enterprises (China) British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited* Mainland China
BAE(PE)REBRAA* KERLZHEE TEARE ES REER
Dongguan Texwinca Textile & PRC/Mainland China HK$2,557,950,000 100 100  Production and sale
Garment Limited* of finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn
REBXEHSRKERDT* hE T E AR 7% 2,557,950,000 7T EEREEHHTREY
Nice Dyeing Factory Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Procurement of
(Macao Commercial Offshore) raw materials and
Limited* sale of finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn
ERBORPIB EBEERK) P B P9 %5 100,000 7T AR AR R
BRAF* HESBAREY
Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of management
services
BREBEERAT Ep] BT REEERE
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100 Property holding
Non-voting deferred
HK$2
KEEXERDLT ] EERABEIOT BREME
BREBELTRE
B2
Winlife Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$15,903,100 100 100 Property holding
KETHRDF R 7% 15,903,100 T HENF
Baleno Holdings Limited*/** British Virgin Islands US$10,000 64 64 Investment holding
NRREEERD T/ RBRELES 10,000 % 7T REER
Baleno Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
HEBEBRAA E] ##10,0007T ERRENZ

ZERDH
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32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. RMBARZRE (#)

Place of incorporation/
registration and operations
AL,

BEREXBE

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/registered
share capital
BROTEER BER
BRAEE

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AR EAEES
RESE
2012 2011
—E-CF —2-—-F

Principal activities

EEEK

Guangzhou Friendship Baleno PRC/Mainland China HK$103,800,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
Company Limited* of causal apparel and
accessory
BMNREERERGERAR* hE HE K 7#1%103,800,000 7T ERRGN2TERDH
LIS R AR 85 A PR 2 R PRC/Mainland China US$200,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
HEL PR KB 200,000 % T ERRGNEERDH
Beijing Xing Yu Baleno Garment & PRC/Mainland China US$500,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
Decoration Company Limited* of casual apparel and
accessory
TREFRREBERGERAF  HE PEKRE 500,000 % T BREGYZEERDH
Chonggqing Dasheng Baleno PRC/Mainland China HK$3,880,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
Company Limited* of casual apparel and
accessory
EREREVRHBHERAT* HEL PR KB 75 13,880,000 T ERRGNEERDH
KM ERRAER AR+ PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
HE E AR A F&# 500,000 7T ERRBWZEERDH
Silver Kingdom Limited* British Virgin Islands/Taiwan us$1 64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
RERBRAT* EWELEE AL 1271 ERRGNEERDH
Bigpoint Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100 Holding of trademarks and
Mainland China provision of franchise
services
KEERDA* KERZEE TEAE ES BFEEEREM
BHEERE
Highrich Corporation* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 64 64 Provision of management
Mainland China services and sub-licensing
of trademarks
KEERDA* KERZEE PEAE ES RUEERB
RREBHERE
Winca (Dongguan) Motor PRC/Mainland China HK$28,460,000 100 100 Provision of repair and
Service Limited* maintenance services for
motor vehicles
KiE(RR)ARBHBRBERAF*  HE/PEAKE 7 ¥ 28,460,000 7T RUREZEERRERS
Successful Channel Corporation* British Virgin Islands/ us$1 64 64  Property holding
Mainland China
R SEE KERZEE PEAE 1%7T X -E/ES
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32.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share capital
BRTEER/
EECRAEE

Place of incorporation/
registration and operations
AL,

BEREXBE

32. RMBARZRE (#)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AR EAEES
RESE
2012
—E-C—&F

Principal activities

TERE
2011
-5

64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERERBY2BERDH

64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EREGN2BERDH

64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERERHGN2EERDH

64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EREHN2TERDH

64 64  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EREGN2BERDH

Billion Global Limited* British Virgin Islands/Taiwan Us$1
Bk R ERA R KBRLHEE AL 127
BRI ERREERD A* PRC/Mainland China RMB1,010,000
HEL R KB AR 1,010,000 7T
RENCHEEERROA* PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,880,000
HEHE KB AR 5,880,000 7T
ROBREBRHERA T PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000
HE HE KB A R#500,000 7T
BREHEE R AR ER R PR 2 R+ PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000
HE B KR AR #600,000 7T
Excel Billion Inc* British Virgin Islands/Taiwan Us$1
KEBEBERDF* KBRLEE A& 127

Dalian Baleno Decoration

PRCU/Mainland China

HK$2,100,000

64 64

64 64

Property holding
BENE

Retailing and distribution

Company Limited*

KEW R RAERAR* RE B AR 7%2,100,000 7T
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or other member firm

of the Ernst & Young global network.

** Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 24 September
2010 entered into between the Group and non-controlling
shareholders, the Group further acquired a 10% equity interests in
Baleno Holdings Limited by issuance of 16,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company at a price of HK$8.90 per share and a cash
consideration of HK$60,880,000, thus increasing its equity interest
therein to 64%.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

of casual apparel and
accessory

EREGN2BERDH

* WHHLKETNEREERAMTKE
STETE R ATEIRR K S & # -

o RAEBEFERRRN —E—FEFNA=
T AFTHEE G AEEREREBE
8907 %177 2 &] & 8 A% 16000000 58 K 3 &
1B 8 8560880000 7T 15 & T JE 5 S B B 1R 2
B]10% A9 #E s + 18 A 2 Z64% °

ERFIEARBDZHEBLR  EERAH
BEHAKERFECERERRIESE
FERAEEREEFEZIENN -ES
RAFIFMEMBRAASSREART
Eo
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34.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#R R Mz

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2011, pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement dated 24 September 2010 entered into
between the Group and non-controlling shareholders, the
Group further acquired a 10% equity interest in Baleno Holdings
Limited by issuance of 16,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a price of HK$8.9 per share as a partial

consideration.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

Bank guarantees given in lieu of REYEELERE >
property rental deposits BATER

Guarantees of banking facilities BEZ ATRTEEMEZ
granted to an associate ER

Guarantees of banking facilites &K BLARRTEEREZ
granted to subsidiaries E&

As at 31 March 2012, the banking facilities granted to
subsidiaries with guarantees given to the banks by the
Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$5,413,401,000 (2011: HK$4,418,769,000) and the
banking facilities granted to an associate with guarantees
given to the banks by the Company were not utilised
(2011: Nil).

33.

34.

—E——F
HK$000
BT T

12,500

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H
HEBRERERMEE

FTEHFRSERB
REBEE-ZZ-——F=ZA=1t—HALEE
N BAEEEFERBERR=_ZF—FF
AE-ZTHBEETMNEERZ XAFE
1% %8 #58.90 7T % 17 % 1 % 16,000,000 % -
EAREEBEANEREBERQTEM
10% & & M ZB1D AL 1E o

REEE
(@) RBEBR UTHREEBERRTH
WA EBRE:

Group
58
2012

Company

AT
2012
—E——fF
HK$°000
BT T

2011
—E——fF
HK$°000
BT

2011
—_E——F
HK$°000
B F T

6,548 6,492 — —

12,500 12,500 12,500

11,597,000 11,466,000

RZEBE-—ZF=ZA=+—H KB
ATEHHAAQATCHRITEER
Z RAT R E # B B 5,413,401,000
T(ZZ— — % #B%4,418,769,000
) MEELAALEHALRLTAE
ERTEERZBTEE(ZZ——
FE) o
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD") initiated a review
on the tax affairs for the past years of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. In March 2007, March 2008, February 2009,
January 2010, March 2011 and March 2012, protective tax
assessments totalling HK$322,038,000, HK$224,000,000,
HK$275,000,000, HK$578,000,000, HK$246,050,000 and
HK$184,625,000 for the years of assessment 2000/2001,
2001/2002, 2002/2003, 2003/2004, 2004/2005 and
2005/2006,
Objections have been raised by the Group against the

respectively, have been issued by the IRD.
protective tax assessments. The directors of these
subsidiaries believe that there are valid grounds to object
to the tax claimed. Subsequent to the objections, the IRD
agreed to hold over the tax claimed completely subject to
the purchase of tax reserve certificates in the sums of
HK$40,000,000, HK$35,000,000, HK$25,000,000,
HK$25,000,000, HK$32,000,000 and HK$28,000,000 for the
years of assessment 2000/2001, 2001/2002, 2002/2003,
2003/2004, 2004/2005 and 2005/2006, respectively. In view
that the tax review is still in progress, the outcome of the
case is still uncertain. Up to the date of approval of these
financial statements, the directors of these subsidiaries
consider that adequate tax provisions have been made in
the financial statements.

34. HBEEE @)

(b)

REBEZ-ZZELtF=ZA=+—-HL
FE FERBRAIBRB)MALE
EHOMBARRHAUETFER
BERETER R-ZZLF=

B-ZZ2ZNFE=ZA -ZZ2ZNF
—A-ZB2-25-RA ZE2-——F
ZSARZE-—Z-ZF=ZA BRAM=
2T/ -FFT- BT /=
T2 -BF-/"BF=. -
TE=/"FTTN - —2FTN =
ZEHAR-ZTETRH = EE/\%%R
FED R EREMER KT

#%322,038,0007C + B ‘#5224,000,000
gt~ B 275,000,000 7T« B &
578,000,000 7T * & *% 246,050,000 7T
% 7B #5184,625,0007T ' KEBCE FiZ
EREAPEIEEERY - 2E5H
BARESHEEANEBMEY
HBREERE RAREEZ FER
BUERHMNEMBNOBR  HES
ﬁﬁ:%gg/—%%—~—%%—
S BB ZFF=-/-FF
:EEE/—EEH‘:ESI/
—EERAR-ZTH/EEAE
FEESNBERB S EABY
40,000,000 7T - & ¥ 35,000,0007T * /&
#%25,000,0007T * /& ¥£25,000,0007T *
78 %% 32,000,000 7T K /& ¥ 28,000,000
T HAREBENHBERDEET
FOEEHNERNATHR -BE
P BBRERBED  EENBEATE
ERAMBBRPCHERBESE
2o

A

A
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to five years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

R—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive HE_ZFHAFRN (BFEERME)

As lessee

The Group leases certain land and buildings for factories,
retail outlets, plant and machinery, a training centre, and
staff and directors’ quarters under operating lease
arrangements. Such leases are negotiated for terms of not
more than 50 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases with its landlords falling due as follows:

R—FR
FE_EERFA(BREREMSF)
RAF#E

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
After five years

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

35. KEHELTH
(@) fEAEHBEA
AEERBECEHSREEEET
REWE (M14) BTEB—FZF
BEFE -BOKRR—BECHESASHN
RERSRITATRELBTIHE
REHEHBESEE-

RBEHR  AEERBEART I
ZAAHEREHEEN ZRRR
BREKESEEIHBROT

Group
&
2012 2011
—B-—F —E2——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BETFT
19,604 17,679
25,653 28,188
45,257 45,867
(b) MEREHEA

FEERBEESEAEZHARBN
THREFAERE TEMH K
EREW FIPLREIRESR
Z - REHENBTHEHBTEBR L
F o

RIBEBR AEERBEEET Y
MAITHEECEHESNRREKR
ERESABEINBERNT :

Group
%E

2012 2011
—g-=% —Z—-F%
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BHF T
507,033 514,709
943,724 885,277
881,503 597,423
2,332,260 1,997,409
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee (continued)

The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or the contingent
rent based on the sales of the retail outlets pursuant to
the terms and conditions as set out in the respective rental
agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be estimated reliably, the relevant contingent
rent has not been included above and only the minimum
lease commitment has been included in the above table.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
commitments under operating lease arrangements (2011:
Nil).

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the

end of the reporting period were as follows:

In respect of property, plant and RUE -BER
equipment, contracted but not ®E BN
provided for BRIZEE

In respect of property, plant and BE BER
equipment, authorised but not HE e
contracted for BREITN

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no capital

commitments (2011: Nil).

35. KEHEZTH @
(b) MEBEBAGE)
HAEEMT2RLELNEEL DR
s BEERENMEA K
HRGEHREENTHEEMNEE
ZHAEEMEP B SEEE -
NEFEREHHESENTRRE
ZHERE M ERKFAMBRAR
& MAFAREHEESEE-

RBERR  ARALEEEHER
HERECE-——F:8)-

36. BEAMHEAIE
AEBABRSHRAE U TEARMNZ HAE

Group

5
2012 2011
—EB-—fF —E2——F

HK$’000 HK$000
B F T B F T
(Restated)

(&AEET)

2,698 862
113,994 109,716
116,692 110,578

REEHE AADLBMERMAR (S
——fF )
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year, the Group had the following related

party transactions:

Sales to Megawell HETEE
Purchases from Megawell EHEEERE
Rental expenses paid to BREEATXAAS
related companies EH
Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The sales to Megawell, an associate of the Group, were
made according to the prices and conditions offered to the

major customers of the Group.

The directors considered that the purchases from Megawell
were made according to the prices and conditions similar to

those offered to other customers of Megawell.

The rental expenses were paid to related companies, of
which certain directors of the Company are also the
directors and beneficial shareholders, for the provision of
directors’ quarters, retail outlets and a training centre for
certain subsidiaries in Hong Kong and mainland China. The
directors considered that the monthly rentals were charged
based on the prevailing market rates at the dates of
entering into the tenancy agreements. The rental expenses
of the directors’ quarters were included in the directors’
remuneration as detailed in note 7 to the financial

statements.

In addition, the Company and the Group have provided

certain guarantees for banking facilities granted to

Megawell, as detailed in note 34(a) to the financial

statements.

37.

31 March 2012 —E—_—F=H=+—H

BEALRS
@ RER FAEEMGETUATEEAL
25

Notes 2012 2011

Bt i —g--5 c—B——%&

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

(i) 468,099 386,916

(i) 433,730 359,626

(iii) 24,528 24,487
BEE -

0 2 (FEFWBHERNE]) ZHETS
RIBAEE T EEFZBRZEHRER
1RIFETIL ©

i)  EERBAEEREZAEERIFSE
HEERAMEF IR BHRMEF
HHIEE -

(i) HAEEFRLFEERAEREG
BBRPEAEZNE R A EERE
& FEPIHREINF L - ZERA
ZEERBEmRRIBARAZEH
EZ - BEERRGAZHEELIREH
ESRFTAZ T SEREE - 11
ZEFEEEHEAEAIERESH
& IR EIRRMIET

oSN AR B RAEBREEERE
TROTIFEEER FAERARN K
HRMFE34(a) ©
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

As at 31 March 2012, Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has provided
advance of HK$23,233,000 (2011: HK$72,043,000) to
Baleno Kingdom Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 3% (2011: HIBOR plus 3%) per annum. The
advance was unsecured and had no fixed terms of
repayment.

As at 31 March 2012, Nice Dyeing Factory (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has provided advance of HK$311,638,000
(2011: HK$257,062,000) to Baleno Holdings Limited, a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at 5.3%
(2011: 83% of HIBOR plus 3%) per annum. The advance is
unsecured and has no fixed terms of repayment.

As at 31 March 2012, Dongguan Texwinca Textile and
Garment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has provided advance of HK$517,395,000 (2011:
Nil) to Guangzhou Friendship Baleno Company Limited, a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at 1.16%
per annum. The advance is unsecured and has no fixed
terms of repayment.

The principal purpose of the above advance is to finance
the operations of Baleno Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries. The transactions were entered into based on
normal commercial terms agreed between the relevant

parties.

37.

BREALRS #®)

(b)

RZZE——-F=A=+—0 F&27
ZEEREMBLARKERRER
AFABAQRRAZHLZEREHEL
AMERERAGDRHEZEREE
#£23,233,000t (=T ——F: B
72,043,0007T) - FREHEBIRITE
EREMI% (ZE——F : HERIT
FEEFREM3I%) - ZERIEIKIFR
EHEERAS-

R-ZZE—Z-F=A=+—H K27

TEHEBMEB A R KERR ORI B
FREERB)ERAFGAOAARFER
EREWBATNNERERERA
AR E KB 1311,638,000T (==
— — & : B #257,062,0007T) © F A
ERS3I%(ZE——F  FEBERTE
#FEM3%MI83%) - ZE I EIK
AREHEERAL-

R=ZZB-—=-F=ZA=+—0 %27
TEBREENBLAARSEKEHA
BXERAABDALNRFZEREE
MBAREMARENEKREGER
A TERME KB 517,395,0007T (=
E——F \) FREH1.16% ° %

ERUEERREBTERAY -

FRERETERFEUAEREEBR
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

()

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a
company controlled and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial
Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu, Bin Jiang Road 282-
286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for the
retail and distribution business of the Group for a term of
two years commencing from 1 April 2012 at the monthly
rent of RMB948,000 and RMB995,000 for the first year and
the second year, respectively.

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout,
Hong Kong from Latex as a director's quarters of the
Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2012 at the monthly rent of HK$360,000.

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited
("WLEL"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun
Chak, an executive director and controlling shareholder of
the Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor,
Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL as a training
center of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2012 at the monthly rent of HK$42,000.

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Grand Treasure Investment Limited
("GTL"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Kei Chak,
an executive director and a shareholder of the Company,
and his spouse, to lease 28 La Salle Road, House 5,
Kowloon from GTL as a director’s quarter of the Group for
a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2012 at the
monthly rent of HK$300,000.

37. BEAXLR B #)

(9]

RZBE-——FE=ZRA=+xB A5£H
BUEBABRERAATLUED (BAE
AANHTEEREERRBEWNE
AER2ERB)BITEH ALEXK
BAURPEXRZEN MY &ETE282
52865 M R EZ B IRETE B » 1F
AEAEBZTERDHEBNTEMN
T H-E-—_—_FNA—HERHM
F O oE-—FRE-—FNEARESSH
B AR % 948,000 7T & A R # 995,000
T o

RZE-—ZFE=ZA=Z+XB &&E
BHRYEERAA(TZIED (BEAA
AHTESREERRBWELE
TERER)FIEH OLEEAESE
BERLUABRBEREELAER
—EEWEZA-BH-ZE—_-FMA
—BRAHME SAHESABYE
360,000 7T °

RZE-—ZF=ZA=Z+~H ' A5&H
BEXEHECEBRAT(KERE]
(BEAAFPITESREERTEW
BEAEZERB)ETEH BXE
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FMA—AE AUWME SAES
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) (continued)

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Essential Guide Limited (“EGL"”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Kai Chak, an
executive director and a shareholder of the Company, and
Mr. Poon Ho Wa, an executive director of the Company,
and their respective spouses, to lease Flat H, 28/F, Tower 1,
The Belcher’s, 89 Pok Fu Lam Road, Pok Fu Lam, Hong
Kong from EGL as a director’s quarter of the Group for a
term of one year commencing from 1 April 2012 at the

monthly rent of HK$89,000.

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Wide Profit Corporation Limited (“WPL"),
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Kai Chak, an
executive director and a shareholder of the Company, and
his spouse, to lease Flat A, 10/F., Trafalgar Court, 70 Tai
Hang Road from WPL as a director’s quarter of the Group
for a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2012 at

the monthly rent of HK$80,000.

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Sonway Enterprises Limited (“SWL"), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Ting Kit Chung, an
executive director and a shareholder of the Company, and
his spouse, to lease 3/F, Ernest Court, 27 Ngan Mok Street,
Hong Kong from SWL as a director’s quarter of the Group
for a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2012 at

the monthly rent of HK$30,000.

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Million World Limited (“MWL"), a
company wholly-owned by a son and the spouse of Mr.
Poon Kai Chak, an executive director and a shareholder of
the Company, to lease Flat A, 31/F, Tower 8, Bel-air on the
Peak, Hong Kong from MWL as a staff quarter of the
Group for a term of one year commencing from 1 April

2012 at the monthly rent of HK$25,500.

37.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

A non-controlling shareholder of the Group’s 64%-owned
subsidiary (2011: 64%) had provided an unconditional
guarantee to indemnify the Group from any loss arising
from the recoverability of prepayments made to a supplier
of the Group of HK$9,755,000 (2011: HK$22,317,000) as
included in the balance of the prepayments, deposits and
other receivables of the Group as at the end of the
reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group:

Short term employee benefits HHEERER
Post-employment benefits BEEEA

Compensation for non-competition 1 {E %% 3 & 3 B 18 (&

undertaking
Total compensation paid to FEEEAE
key management personnel N g

The key management personnel of the Group refer to the
executive directors of the Company. Further details of
directors’ remuneration are included in note 7 to the

financial statements.

Save as disclosed under “Details of non-exempt continuing

connected transactions” of the Report of the Directors, the

related party transactions in respect of items (a)(iii) above

constitute continuing connected transactions which are

exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent

shareholders’ approval requirements as defined in Chapter 14A
Rule 65(4) of the Listing Rules.

37.

BREALRS #®)

(d)

(e)

AEBEHEBA6A% (ZF——F : 64%)
EaMBARZEP —FERR
RRASEEREAS-—HEFTERE
#9,755,000 L (=& — — F: B ¥
22,317,0007c ) 12 it MR =R LA %8
EBEMAAEERK EZB% - RikE
BAR ZREEBERAEENEMSR
B e REMERRERESRF

REBTEEEANEHMH:
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—B--F =%
HK$°000 HK$000
BMF T BEF T
100,167 103,041

71 267

4,960 —
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. REFESIMERMITA
RBESHR SECHMITAREENT :

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group -3
Financial assets THREE

Financial assets

at fair value

Held-to- through profit
or loss — held
for trading
UA AR

Loans and
receivables

maturity
investments

BHEZHFA
BaEH
ERMEE—
RFEEEHE
HK$°000
BEFT

BEXR
FE e 2 18 GEL
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BETT

Trade receivables FE UK BR X — — 683,416 683,416
Bills receivable W EE
— external trade —NHESZ — — 403,450 403,450
Bills receivable EWREE
— intra-group trade —EERAE S — — 1,707,485 1,707,485
Financial assets included in @ ¥EATE(=1E -
prepayments, deposits 7] & R E fh FE Uk
and other receivables BRAAZERMEE — — 227,060 227,060
Held-to-maturity investments 5 Z Z|Hi 918 & 23,384 — — 23,384
Long term rental deposits RS — — 122,092 122,092
Derivative financial assets TESREE — 12,661 — 12,661
Cash and cash equivalents HERESEEY —_ —_ 4,500,318 4,500,318
Group £8
Financial liabilities THEE

Financial liabilities
at fair value
through profit Financial
or loss — held liabilities at
for trading amortised cost
LA RETE
BHSHA
B
TReE—
HERE
HK$'000
BETFT

b8 Yo
ARREY
SHAE a5t

HK$000
BETT

HK$°000
BETFT

Due to an associate B E QA — 9,715 9,715
Trade payables FEAS BR X — 1,333,828 1,333,828
Bills payable ENERE

— external trade —HNHE S — 93,469 93,469
Bills payable BNEE

— intra-group trade —EBRAPES —_ 1,707,485 1,707,485
Financial liabilities included in BEREMEMFERAR

other payables and EitEaERz

accrued liabilities tRas — 144,584 144,584
Derivative financial liabilities TEEmEans 4,492 — 4,492

Interest-bearing bank borrowings [ff £ 4R 17 & X

3,605,899

3,605,899
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. #ZEEE 7@ I A @)

Group &=
Financial assets TREE

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss — held
for trading
UAREH R

HK$°000
BETT

Loans and
receivables

BERR
FE Uk 351
HK$000
BT T

At
HK$°000
BT

Trade receivables FE W BR 7R — 593,401 593,401
Bills receivable EWEE
— external trade —HNEE 5 — 348,060 348,060
Bills receivable FEWERE
— intra-group trade —SERBES — 734,580 734,580
Financial assets included in BIERELRE
prepayments, deposits ek EMmEK
and other receivables ERFAAZERMEE — 287,229 287,229
Long term rental deposits RSk — 110,804 110,804
Derivative financial assets FTEemERE 17,006 — 17,006
Cash and cash equivalents BHe2RELZEY _ 4,232,835 4,232,835
Group &8
Financial liabilities THEE

Financial liabilities
at fair value

through profit Financial
or loss — held liabilities at
for trading amortised cost
DAREF2
A
Bar g KPR
SRasE— ABRHY
BHIEEE B =R &%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
B F T B F T B F T
Due to an associate FE{TEEE DT — 45,707 45,707
Trade payables FEAS BR X — 1,400,632 1,400,632
Bills payable B EE
— external trade —HNBE S — 89,438 89,438
Bills payable A EE
— intra-group trade —EERPESZ — 734,580 734,580
Financial liabilities included in BEREMENSERRE
other payables and EtagRz
accrued liabilities TREas — 240,688 240,688
Derivative financial liabilities EERAas 8,026 — 8,026
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kf 5 847 & &% — 3,588,259 3,588,259
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. #ZEEE 7@ I A @)

Company A F
Financial assets THEE
2012 2011
—®-=%f e
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
EXREKRRE EXRREWRFIE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Due from subsidiaries FEUS B B 2 F) 340,903 773,506
Dividend receivable FEW R B 950,000 410,000
Cash and cash equivalents HEPHREEEY 148 162
Financial liabilities THEE

2012 2011
—EB--F =%
Financial Financial

liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost
=8 8 R A % 8 85 B AR
ARHNEEEE ARNERARE

HK$’000 HK$°000
B FT B F T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITER — 76,667
Financial liabilities included in BEREFEEARAZ
accrued liabilities t@mas 126 127
39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 39. XARESEK

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and AEERAUTEREEREESRIA

disclosing the fair values of financial instruments: ZRRE:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices F—R UHPAzZEEREBERERM S
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or ZHRERERB)TEZARE
liabilities;

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for F-R BEBEHEEFEZARAEBE W2
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the HMEMEHEAABEEATLEZ
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or MABERYTEEREEZEERS
indirectly; =

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for F=ER BREGEEHEZAORE ME
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the AEMREARBEEREE

recorded fair value are not based on observable market MABERYLFRETER 2T
data (unobservable inputs). SHE (THEBREZ2BAER)
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)
As at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011,
instruments measured at fair value held by the Group comprised

the financial

derivative financial instruments and were classified as Level 2.

During the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans, cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables
and trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its

operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage
currency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources
of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note
2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage this
mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest
rate fluctuations.

39.

40.
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DNRABEER @)
R-—EB——F=B=+-AR=-ZB——F
ZHA=+-RB AEERERAAENE
CEARMIABEMESRIA YHRES
E=Ro

RBE-ZE-—-F=ZA=+—-HR=
—FZA=t-HLFE HEFE KN
BE-ReBZAIREFE2ER  TEB
BEoREARES -

HHEEREEBEBERBXK

FAEBZETEERMIA(RTEIREMN
BRETER REREHFR -ZER
MIACTEENRALAEESELE
§§°$EIﬁE@$WWWﬁ§F&E
& WMEWER K B W RS RN IR
ENRE NDEERBHEEE

ZK%.JT/,\ E ﬁg,ig@;ﬁﬁ
ﬁéizﬁ%ﬂﬁo

AEEERIAMELEZETERRABA
ZEENERAR - FERBREAB LR
B EEEFRHIBRARRUEELER
B RERRBPLANT - AEBEBAITE
TEZEHBERBRUBRERMT24-

FEER
FEEEHTSNEEPAKREIRALE
Bz FRRITEREE-

FAEBNHRERAASENEERFIEE
RESUEEHRERAK - BUARAN
ERzAG AEBUZHNXREDRS
HEUREEEE R =R E 2 m -
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s and the Company’s profit before tax
and equity (through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

40.

R =@ b ()
TERRTEEEMEHEHMEENER
T AEBERARB R ANER R ES
HEEBERUENFZZEH (FEHILERK
M S &) BB -

Increase/
(decrease)
in interest rate

Group

rE
Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before

tax and equity

BHRREEEEREE @)

Company
LN
Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before
tax and equity

BRBAERR R AR R
F=gm  E@mEMS EZEEMS
O 2) O 2) O 2)
% HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT
2012 —m_—x
Hong Kong dollar B 1 (34,415) —
Hong Kong dollar B (1) 34,415 —
2011 —E——F
Hong Kong dollar B 1 (22,832) (1,573)
Hong Kong dollar 7 1) 22,832 1,573
Foreign currency risk M 3L B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currency. Approximately 29%
(2011: 27%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operating units
making the sale, whilst almost 28% (2011: 47%) of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

AEERFERSZEBRAR ZARRBEL
EENUZENIEEB U EBET
HESRE AEBMPY29% (ZF——F:
27%) 2 HETD UK EENIEEEB U2
EMEE FAEN28% (22— —F:47%)

ZHATIUEEEMTY

HE-

i

BEEWUICESR

TERRRTRBEEMR EEEREEM
ZENBRT  NEBOBRBAERRA

EENERDY

{AERAENARKESRS

B(HNEBUHEENEEIRENES)
HYBURAE o
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 40.

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2012 —E2-C-F

If Hong Kong dollar weakens BB EARBEERE
against RMB

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens BB ARBEAE
against RMB

2011 —E-—F

If Hong Kong dollar weakens BB EARY
against RMB BE

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens i B HEARY
against RMB FE

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not
significant as the counterparties of these other financial assets
are mainly well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy

third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 22
to the financial statements.

31 March 2012 —E——_F=H=+—H
BERREREBERBUR @)

S L B (AE)

Increase/

Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease)  profit before

in exchange rate tax and equity
R B A 0% Al &
M

=M,
O 2) O 2)

% HK$°000
BB F T

1 5,721
1) (5.721)
1 3,310
(1 (3,310)

FERR

FEEEEWNEIAGERFZE=ZER
ZoAREECBRARZEARFERZ
EFRIGHEKRF RETBREZEESR
BAERF o WO REBISE D EREWRR
HER AUAEBYES K 2RREAR -

FrEBHGEREE(ERRAERASS
BY TEERIR) 2FERAREERS
HFEOWMES EoRABESEHRZET
AvhREE ARULEGEREERSY
FEIERBEZARGERFZHE At
EEAAZZABILFEK-

HRAEEERREREERF2E=F
R HUABEREHRERR -

HtBRASEHHARUERELENE
EREBRZEBLCENCHRERYBHRRME
22 °
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. B EREEEERKE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk B R B

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEBEBEEZERFARTEIRRBITERU
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank FERESHNEEMERETHMEFE-
overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31 March 2012, 11% (2011: R-ZB-—Z—ZF=ZA=+—H AEBLE
16%) and 89% (2011: 84%) of the Group’s total borrowings FH11% (ZZE——F :16%) &89% (=&
would mature after one year and in less than one year, ——F 84%) DRI R—FER—FRE
respectively. B

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the AEBRBEHRANERAE BEEAX
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BRI AMNERBERAENT :

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group &£ E
2012
“E--F
Lessthan 3 to less than

On demand 3 months 12 months 1to 5 years Total

RERX =EALURA —-ZRE At

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETFT BEFT BEFT BETT BY T

Due to an associate EAEE AR - 9,715 — — 9,715

Interest-bearing bank borrowings fff 248 17 & i — 2,929,501 278,562 414,581 3,622,644

Trade payables FEA3 BR X - 1,301,175 32,653 - 1,333,828

Bills payable — external trade =~ ENZHE— I HEH - 93,394 75 — 93,469
Bills payable AN

— intra-group trade —SEHBES - 700,063 1,007,422 - 1,707,485

Financial liabilities included in B REMER RS
other payables and accrued REGEERAZ

liabilities LREE 60,276 84,068 — 240 144,584
Derivative financial liabilities TEEREE — 732 3,760 — 4,492
60,276 5,118,648 1,322,472 414,821 6,916,217

2011
—E—_—F

Lessthan 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1to 5 years Total

=z

RERX =EAUAR  TZHEAR —ERE A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BETFT BEFT BEFT
Due to an associate EREE AR - 45,707 — — 45,707
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ff 248 17 & — 2,729,328 309,252 566,744 3,605,324
Trade payables A3 BR X - 1,383,556 17,076 — 1,400,632
Bills payable — external trade ~ ENZHE— M IES — 89,438 — — 89,438
Bills payable AN

— intra-group trade —SEHBES - 164,951 569,629 — 734,580

Financial liabilities included in B RE M ERNEZ

other payables and accrued REGEERAZ

liabilities LREE 126,204 114,244 — 240 240,688
Derivative financial liabilities TEEHMER — 3,069 4,957 — 8,026

126,204 4,530,293 900,914 566,984 6,124,395
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. iR ESERZE R IEXK (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B R B ()
Company AT

2012
—E-—_—F
3 to less
Less than than

On demand 3 months 12 months  1to5 years Total

=%
RER =@ANMA +=-fAR —ZIF &5
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BYEFTT BYETTT BYETT BETT

Financial liabilities included BERETEERAZ

in accrued liabilities =L 126 — - - 126
Guarantees of banking BHWBARCEHA

facilities granted to subsidiaries  $#R1TEE

to the extent utilised FrEZ B R 5,413,401 — — — 5,413,401

5,413,527 — — — 5,413,527

2011
—E——F
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months  1to 5years Total

=2
BER =fANUR t=-EAR —EIfF At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EEFT EETRT EETT E¥Trt EF¥Tx

Financial liabilities included BEREFEBERZ

in accrued liabilities sREE 127 — — — 127
Interest-bearing bank borrowings [ 238 17 & — 40,511 36,495 — 77,006
Guarantees of banking AHWBARCEA

facilities granted to subsidiaries  $R{TE &

to the extent utilised FrE 2 1R 4,418,769 — — — 4,418,769

4,418,896 40,511 36,495 - 4,495,902
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40.

41.

42,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be

able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return

to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the

debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2012 and 31 March 2011.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio

at an appropriate level.

Total interest-bearing debts wRES

Less: Cash and cash equivalents Kk B2 RBELEEY

Total equity RS

Gearing ratio BEXRER/ELER
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 41.

During the year, certain comparative amounts have been
reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. In
particular, bills receivable and bills payable are presented

separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 25 June 2012.

BHRREEEEREE @)

BEXER

AEBEXAEERARRAEERAFE
MEsgEn ANEBRENEHREAES
He UEEEEaMEESIBRER-

FEBEREREBURBELEEERLHY
ERFHBAE AEBTUBBAEHRKR
RRKBENRE - MRRBEEARARNBTH
BRURFHFABEREE - RBEE-F —
ZH¥=ZR=t-BR=ZE-——FZH=+
—HEFER EFXEENELR BER
BFILEEE -

AEBEREREEBHEEZEL BX
EEXERIKRESRASEBNENR
MEEBRUBERTE RNEBOEE
EREMEFERAGELRREEAT -

Group
ES

2012 2011
—g-—% —E——%
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BHF T
3,605,899 3,588,259
(4,500,318) (4,232,835)
(894,419) (644,576)
5,869,085 5,512,687
N/A N/A

EEEgHF

TER ETHEBRHFERESIEUAFS
REEN2NFEX RERBRREBERE
NRERGEUBRRRPIEES -

MBEHRZLE
FHBHREER-B-—FAA=THA
MESSLERBEE -
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